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3975 
Barnet Resnick, Esq. 
Admitted Pro Hac Vice 
Vogt / Resnick / Sherak, LLP 
4400 MacArthur Boulevard 
Ninth Floor 
P.O. Box 7849 
Newport Beach, CA 92658-7849 
T. 949.851.9001 
Lead Counsel for Mrs. Dinny Frasier 
 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 
 
In the Matter of the 
 
JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST 
 

   Case No: PR16-00128 
 
   Dept. No.: 15 [PR] 

STATEMENT OF BARNET RESNICK REGARDING RPC 1.14 

I, BARNET RESNICK, declare as follows: 

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice law before all courts in the State of 

California. 

2. I was admitted pro hac vice in the State of Nevada in this proceeding. 

3. I am the attorney of record for Dinny Frasier (“Mrs. Frasier”), individually, 

who is a party in the above-captioned matter. 

4. I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth herein and if called and 

sworn to testify, I could and would competently do so. 

5. I have been practicing law, with a focus on trusts and estates, for 44 years.  

Prior to practicing law I was a trust officer for 7 years, administering inter vivos and 

testamentary trusts as well as probates, conservatorships and guardianships.  

Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a copy of my curriculum vitae.   

6. Pursuant to Judge Hardy’s order dated August 16, 2018 asking how I 

complied with PRC 1.14, I submit the following: 

7. In accordance with RPC 1.14, I have maintained a normal client-lawyer 

F I L E D
Electronically
PR16-00128

2018-09-18 12:47:17 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6885036 : pmsewell
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relationship with Mrs. Frasier since the beginning of my engagement and still 

continue to do so.   

8. It is my opinion that Mrs. Frasier has capacity based on my substantial 

experience in this area of law.  Therefore, given her age and the allegations of 

certain parties to this matter, to (medically) validate my opinion, I recommended 

to Mrs. Frasier that she obtain capacity assessments during the course of my 

representation to which she agreed.  She obtained three such assessments from 

James Spar, M.D. (“Dr. Spar”) (his curriculum vitae is attached as Exhibit 2), 

having been determined during each of those three assessments to have 

testamentary AND contractual capacity.  Dr. Spar’s three redacted (pursuant to 

HIPAA) capacity assessment letters dated April 26, 2017, May 22, 2017, and 

September 26, 2017 are attached hereto as Exhibit 3. 

9. Because of the time period since the last assessment, an extensive capacity 

assessment was more recently performed by Sandra Klein, PhD, (“Dr. Klein”) a 

member of the UCI Division of Geriatric Medicine & Gerontology (her curriculum 

vitae is attached as Exhibit 4).  Post assessment, I spoke with Dr. Klein who 

stated that Mrs. Frasier “did very well.”  Dr. Klein advised me that she was to 

begin a vacation in Europe, but that she would be able to issue her written report 

by the end of September.  Therefore, I request that I be allowed to supplement this 

Statement to include Dr. Klein’s report. 

10. There has never been a medical determination or legal adjudication of Mrs. 

Frasier’s incapacity, notwithstanding the numerous unsupported allegations by her 

daughter Amy Frasier-Wilson (“Amy”) and Premier Trust, Inc. (“Premier”).  I have 

not reasonably believed that Mrs. Frasier had diminished capacity as set forth in 

RPC 1.14. 

11. During my 22 months of professional relationship with Mrs. Frasier, my staff 

and I have communicated with her, in person or telephonically (including many 

FaceTime calls) an average of 2 to 3 times per month, most of which were with me.   

6 AA 1174
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12. As stated by me in earlier pleadings in this matter, Mrs. Frasier was referred 

to me by her family friend of 30 years. I immediately became quite fond of Mrs. 

Frasier.  In some respects, she reminded me of my deceased mother.  Mrs. Frasier 

and I are both former Chicago residents with a Jewish background.  She uses similar 

Yiddish phrases as my mother did, and has a tremendous sense of humor, as my 

mother had. 

13. I CARE ABOUT MRS. FRASIER.  Having said this, I have always maintained 

my professionalism and have been my client’s advocate, while conducting myself 

within the boundaries of the California Professional Rules of Conduct and RPC 1.14. 

14. When Mrs. Frasier hired me, she was very explicit as to the purposes for 

which I was retained: (1) to settle the Bradley Frasier/Premier litigation and (2) to 

terminate her relationship with Premier and with the law firm of Robertson, 

Johnson, Miller, and Williamson (“Mr. Robertson’s firm”). 

15. I was able to settle the Bradley Frasier/Premier litigation during a nine hour 

mediation which I promulgated.  I believe all parties will concur that I was the 

driving force behind the settlement of this dispute. 

16. Reaching a successful result to the termination of the two relationships has 

been more difficult. This is due, in part, to Mrs. Frasier’s children’s meddling in Mrs. 

Frasier’s personal life (legal, financial and medical), and the fact that Mrs. Frasier 

is not confrontational and has allowed her children to “push her around.”  Another 

reason it has been more difficult to resolve the termination of the relationships is 

due to Premier’s lack of experience in personal trust administration, which has 

resulted in continuous mismanagement of the trust.  [See attached Exhibit 5 – Decl. 

Janie Mulrain dated September 17, 2018, 2:8-23] 

17. Because the trust administration and litigation are located in Nevada, hiring 

local counsel in Reno became necessary.  Courtney O’Mara of Fennemore Craig, PC 

was initially retained, but Ms. O’Mara’s firm withdrew from the case due to a conflict 

and recommended the firm of Wallace & Millsap to take its place.  Wallace & Millsap 

6 AA 1175
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was retained as local counsel for the main purpose of formatting pleadings and to 

advise on Nevada procedural issues.  

18. When I was first engaged by Mrs. Frasier, she did not want anything to do 

with her children. She was very angry with her children, as she felt that they only 

wanted financial gain from her and that their expressions of caring were insincere 

and motivated by greed. Pursuant to her wishes, Mrs. Frasier’s children were not 

allowed direct contact with her, and measures were taken to temporarily cut ties 

with her children, which protocols Premier helped to formulate. [See attached 

Exhibit 6 – Second Decl. Janie Mulrain dated June 25, 2017, ¶7-¶10] 

19. Since my engagement, I have conferred with Mrs. Frasier at every stage of 

this litigation.  Due to her short term memory loss, I have to sometimes remind Mrs. 

Frasier of certain background facts so that she can make an informed decision. But 

with a little nudging of her short term memory, she has always been very vocal with 

me about the course of action she wants me to take in representing her interests 

throughout this matter, and I have complied with her wishes to the best of my 

abilities.   

20. Mrs. Frasier has been very vocal with me and others (in my presence) about 

her wishes to minimize contact with her children and to fire Premier and Mr. 

Robertson’s firm.  She would continually direct me to get involved in preventing her 

children’s meddling in her personal affairs and pursuing the termination of the 

Premier/Robertson relationships. 

21. Although I believe that Mrs. Frasier is capable of making informed decisions 

regarding the present litigation, she is susceptible to undue influence and 

manipulation by her children as a result of her short term memory loss, her 

advanced age, frail physical health, and her non-confrontational personality.  Mrs. 

Frasier’s care staff and medical team and I are extremely concerned and alarmed by 

the detriment to her health resulting from improper contact with her children.  

Because Mrs. Frasier is such a warm and caring person, she oftentimes is reluctant 

6 AA 1176
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to be honest about her true feelings to those around her, for fear of hurting their 

feelings or making the situation uncomfortable.  [See attached Exhibit 7 – 

Declaration of Janis Nieder] 

22. Mrs. Frasier’s daughter Amy has a history of exerting undue influence and 

manipulation of Mrs. Frasier. For example, in or around the summer of 2015, Mrs. 

Frasier fell and broke her hip. While Mrs. Frasier was medicated and recuperating 

at a rehabilitation facility, Amy brought on attorney H. Travis Brooks, an estate 

planning attorney, to amend and restate Mrs. Frasier’s Survivor’s Trust.  The way 

in which the Survivor’s Trust was amended—disinheriting Amy’s two siblings, 

Bradley Frasier (“Brad”) and Nori Frasier Cady (“Nori”), and leaving everything to 

Amy—is direct evidence of Amy’s pattern of using opportunities of Mrs. Frasier’s 

weakness to further her financial gain.  As Mrs. Frasier was helpless when Amy 

influenced her to amend her trust in 2015, Mrs. Frasier is still unable to voice her 

feelings of anger and hostility directly to her children, and only expresses those 

sentiments to others. [Decl. Nieder 2:14-17; Decl. Janie Mulrain dated September 

17, 2018 ¶6]  

23. Mrs. Frasier’s children, especially Amy, are taking a toll on her physically.  

Amy and her husband Bill Wilson (“Bill”) often visit Mrs. Frasier at her home since 

Mrs. Frasier has agreed to see her children again.  However, instead of spending 

quality time with her, they are using these visits to constantly interrogate Mrs. 

Frasier with questions about her trusts, her finances, and personal questions.  [See 

attached Exhibit 8 – Declaration of Chipiwa “Stella” Williams 1:24-27]. Amy and 

Bill often overstay their scheduled visits. [Decl. Williams 2:5-17].  During these 

visits, Amy and Bill spend the majority of the time investigating everything, 

repeatedly asking Mrs. Frasier about her financial matters, about the frequency of 

visits from her other children, what is discussed with her other children, and her 

estate plan.  [Decl. Williams; See attached Exhibit 9 – Email from Jonathan Irish 

dated July 27, 2018].  The situation makes Mrs. Frasier very tense and 

6 AA 1177
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uncomfortable and has gotten so bad that a caregiver, Stella Williams as well as 

other caregivers have even asked to be taken off Mrs. Frasier’s case because of Amy’s 

behavior. [Decl. Williams] 

24. At times, Amy and Bill record Mrs. Frasier and her caregiver staff while Amy 

asks her questions about her estate plan and other financial matters, which makes 

Mrs. Frasier very uncomfortable, and thereby necessitating Jonathan Irish, Vice 

President of Operations for Family Home Care, Inc. to take action to prohibit 

recordings of his care agency staff.  [Decl. Williams 2:5-17; See attached Exhibit 15 

– Decl. Irish 1:15-21].  Amy constantly threatens Mrs. Frasier’s caregivers, verbally 

abuses them, makes unfounded accusations towards them, and tries to kick them 

out of Mrs. Frasier’s home for no apparent reason. [See attached Exhibit 10 – 

Declaration of Laura Germano] [See attached Exhibit 14 – Declaration of Araceli 

“Sally” Dalton] 

25. On September 16, 2018, caregiver Sarah Magana was at Dinny’s home during 

Sarah’s scheduled 7am-7pm shift.  [See attached Exhibit 11 – Declaration of Sarah 

Magana 1:21] Amy and Bill had a scheduled visit with Dinny that day from 1:00pm-

5:00pm and showed up late at approximately 2:00pm.  [Decl. Magana 1:21-24] As 

soon as they arrived, Amy started verbally abusing Sarah and even physically 

assaulted her.  [Decl. Magana 2:1-8] which necessitated Sarah calling 911 out of fear 

for her safety.   

26. Based on the chain of events that have transpired since Mrs. Frasier’s 

children have entered Mrs. Frasier’s life again and the resulting harm to Mrs. 

Frasier’s health and wellbeing, I fully support the recommendation of Michael 

Haga, M.D., Mrs. Frasier’s primary care physician, that all visits with Mrs. Frasier 

be chaperoned, and restricted in duration and topics of discussion.  [See attached 

Exhibit 12 – Declaration of Dr. Michael Haga 1:24-25]. It would be in Mrs. 

Frasier’s best interest for the visits to be supervised at all times, be kept to a 

maximum of two hours per visit, and the topics of finances, estate plan, and gifts 

6 AA 1178
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be strictly prohibited from being discussed.  [Decl. Haga 1:24-25; Decl. Nieder 2:9-

11].     

27. It is evident from the various declarations of Mrs. Frasier’s care agency 

representative, caregivers and medical care team that Amy and Bill’s visits are 

wreaking havoc on Mrs. Frasier’s health and well-being and should be supervised.  

Various members of Mrs. Frasier’s medical care team have observed the tension 

and stress that the topic of her children causes Mrs. Frasier. [Decl. Nieder 2:9-13; 

Decl. Haga 1:22-25] 

28. Mrs. Frasier also wants the visits to be supervised, as evidenced in her 

handwritten July 1, 2018 letter in which she directs that her children’s visits with 

her be chaperoned at all times.  [See attached Exhibit 13 – Handwritten note by 

Dinny Frasier dated July 1, 2018].  While Mrs. Frasier at one time wanted to give 

her children a chance to be a part of her life once again, her children’s abusive and 

manipulative actions make clear that something must be done to protect Mrs. 

Frasier from harm and influence by her children. 

29. It should be noted that Mrs. Frasier’s children appear to be concerned about 

her capacity, or the lack thereof, but none of her children have sought a California 

court’s determination of incapacity or a conservatorship. 

 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that 

the foregoing is true and correct. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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Affirmation 

 The undersigned does hereby affirm this document does not contain the social 

security number or legally private information of any party. 

 Executed this 17th day of September, 2018, at Newport Beach, California.  
 
       By:  /s/   Barnet Resnick                                . 
                           BARNET RESNICK 
         Admitted Pro Hac Vice 
         Counsel for Mrs. Dinny Frasier 
  

6 AA 1180
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify I am an employee of Wallace & Millsap LLC, 

510 W. Plumb Lane, Suite A, Reno, NV 89509, and that on the 18th day of September, 

2018, I served the foregoing document via the Second Judicial District Court’s 

electronic filing system upon Premier Trust through its Counsel of Record – G. David 

Robertson, Esq.  I further certify I deposited a true copy of the foregoing with the U.S 

Postal Service in Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, addressed to: 

 
Nori Frasier 
4372 Pacifica Way, Unit 3 
Oceanside, California 92056 
 
Amy Frasier Wilson 
10 Via Sonrisa 
Mission Viejo, California 92692 
 
Bradley L. Frasier, MD 
3609 Vista Way 
Oceanside, CA 92056 

 DATED this 18th day of September, 2018 

  
      By:   /s/    Chris Miller                               . 
       An Employee of Wallace & Millsap 
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Mal/agillg Par/ller 

BARNET RESNICK 
4400 MacArthur Boulevard, 9th Floor 

Newport Beach, California 92660 
(949) 851-900 I 

(949) 833-3445 (facsimile) 

Vogt I Resnick I Sherak LLP, Attorneys 

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Extensive experience in the below listed law specialties. Represented clients before judicial, 
administrative, and regulatory bodies at both the state and federal levels. Admitted to practice in 
California in 1974. Broad background in teaching, ranging from teaching Certified Public 
Accountants and attorneys, to teaching at universities. 

LAW SPECIALTIES 

Business Law, Corporate, Real Property, Estate and Probate, Taxation (domestic and 
international) 

TEACHING/BOARD EXPERIENCE 

Former Trustee of California's second largest Community College District; Past Chairman, 
Orange Coast College Foundation (approximately $15 million in assets); Associate Professor, 
California State University at Long Beach; Associate Professor, California State University at 
Sacramento; Past Board Member of Volunteer Center of Orange County; Past Board Member of 
Pediatric Cancer Society of Orange County; Instructor, American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants; Lecturer, Continuing Education of the Bar (Estate Planning); Instructor, 
University of California Certified Financial Planning Program; Instructor, Orange Coast 
College 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

California Bar Association; Orange County Bar Association; Orange County Estate Planning 
Council 

EDUCATION 

DePaul University (Ph.b.); Western State College of Law (J.D.) 
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

In the matter of 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

CASE NO. PRIG-001 28 

JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY 
TRUST 

DEPT. NO. 15 

DECLARATION OF BARNET RESNICK 

I, BARNET RESNICK, declare as follows: 

I. [am an attorney duly licensed to practice law before all courts in the State of California. 

2. [am the attorney of record for DimlY Frasier, individually, who is a party in the above-

captioned matter. 

3. I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth herein and if called and sworn to 

testify, [ could and would competently do so. 

4. I have been practicing law, with a focus on trusts and estates, for 44 years. Attached 

hereto as EXHIBIT A is a copy of my curriculum vitae outlining my legal and other trust 

and estate related experiences. 

5. Pursuant to this Court's Order dated August I G, 2018, below are the dates and times of 

my communications with my client, Dinny Frasier ("Mrs. Frasier"), since April 1, 2018. 

a. April 9, 2018, 2:30pm-4:00pm: [met with Mrs. Frasier at my office. 

b. May 25,2018, 9:37am-9:47am: [had a phone call with Mrs. Frasier. 

c. June 3, 2018, 7:29pm-7:55pm: I had a phone call with Mrs. Frasier. 

d. June 30, 2018, 10: 13pm-1 0: 14pm: I had a phone call with Mrs. Frasier. 

e. July I, 2018, II :30am-11 :4Iam: I had a phone call with Mrs. Frasier. 

f. August 10,2018, 9:48 pm-9:52pm: I spoke to Mrs. Frasier via FaceTime. 

g. August 13, 2018: I had a phone call with Mrs. Frasier. 

h. August 28, 2018, 10:31 am-1 0:37am: I spoke to Mrs. Frasier via FaceTime. 

i. August 30, 2018, 8:00am-8:30am: I met with Mrs. Frasier at the UCI Medical 
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Center. 

J. August 30, 20 18, 2:00pm-2:20pm: I had a phone call with Mrs . Frasier. 

6. In addition to those communications referenced above, I have also hosted birthday 

lunches for Mrs. Frasier every year since my engagement. I hosted a birthday lunch for 

Mrs. Frasier on March 27, 20 17 at Andrei ' s in Irvine, California, and I hosted a birthday 

lunch for Mrs. Frasier on March 27, 20 18 in Cafe Jardin in Corona Del Mar, California. I 

have also taken Mrs. Frasier to an Anaheim Ducks hockey game at the Honda Center in 

Anaheim, California. Attached hereto as EXHIBIT B are some pictures taken from those 

events. 

I declare under penalty of peljury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the 

foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed thi s 17th day of September, 20 18, at Newport Beach, California. 

BARNET RESNICK 
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BARNET RESNICK 
4400 MacArthur Boulevard, 9th Floor 

Newport Beach, California 92660 
(949) 851-9001

(949) 833-3445 (facsimile)

Managing Partner 
Vogt | Resnick | Sherak LLP, Attorneys 

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Extensive experience in the below listed law specialties. Represented clients before judicial, 
administrative, and regulatory bodies at both the state and federal levels. Admitted to practice in 
California in 1974. Broad background in teaching, ranging from teaching Certified Public 
Accountants and attorneys, to teaching at universities.  

LAW SPECIALTIES 

Business Law, Corporate, Real Property, Estate and Probate, Taxation (domestic and 
international) 

TEACHING/BOARD EXPERIENCE 

Former Trustee of California’s second largest Community College District; Past Chairman, 
Orange Coast College Foundation (approximately $15 million in assets); Associate Professor, 
California State University at Long Beach; Associate Professor, California State University at 
Sacramento; Past Board Member of Volunteer Center of Orange County; Past Board Member of 
Pediatric Cancer Society of Orange County; Instructor, American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants; Lecturer, Continuing Education of the Bar (Estate Planning); Instructor, 
University of California Certified Financial Planning Program; Instructor, Orange Coast 
College 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

California Bar Association; Orange County Bar Association; Orange County Estate Planning 
Council 

EDUCATION 

DePaul University (Ph.b.); Western State College of Law (J.D.) 
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EXHIBITB 
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CURRICULUM VITAE (7/15) 

JAMES EDWARD SPAR, M.D. 

Date & place of birth: September 11, 1946, Los Angeles, California 

Address: Semel Institute for Neuroscience and Human Behavior, University of 
California at Los Angeles (UCLA), 760 Westwood Plaza, Los 
Angeles, California 90024, (310) 825-0038 

Education and Professional Training 

1966 -1968 

1968 -1972 

1973 -1974 

1974 -1977 

1977 - 1978 

1993 -1998 

Military Service 

1963 - 1964 

UCLA BA Zoology 1968, cum laude; Honors in Zoology 

UCLA School of Medicine, M.D., June, 1972 

Internship in Internal Medicine, Children's Hospital, 
San Francisco, California 

Psychiatric Residency, UCLA - Brentwood VA Hospital 

Fellowship, Geriatric Psychiatry, NPI&H, UCLA 

Fellow, Faculty Development Program in Substance Abuse (J. Thomas 
Ungerleider, M.D., Principal Investigator), funded by Center for Substance Abuse 
Prevention 

United States Army National Guard; Honorable 
Discharge, March 18, 1964 

Licensures/Certification 

1973 
1973 
1979 
1991 
2001 

Professional Societies 

1981 - 1992 
1982-1987 
1984 -1987 
2003 -

California State Medical License #G24955 
Narcotics License #AS1011357 
Diplomate, Am. Bd. of Psychiatry & Neurology (ABPN) 
Diplomate, Added Qualifications in Geriatric Psychiatry (ABPN) 
Diplomate, Subspecialty of Geriatric Psychiatry (ABPN) 

Member, Am. Assoc. for Geriatric Psychiatry 
Member, Intern. Psychogeriatric Society 
Member of Board of Directors, Am. Assoc. for Geriatric Psychiatry 
Member, American Psychiatric Association, Southern California Psychiatric 
Society 

Academic Appointments 

1978 -1979 

1979 -1988 

Acting Assistant Professor, Dept. of Psychiatry & Biobehavioral 
Sciences, UCLA School of Medicine 

Assistant Professor, Dept. of Psychiatry & Biobehavioral Sciences, 
UCLA School of Medicine 
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1988-1993 

1993-1998 

1996-97 

1998 -

2002-

Associate Clinical Professor, Dept. of Psychiatry & Biobehavioral 
Sciences, UCLA School of Medicine 

Associate Professor of Clinical Psychiatry, Dept. of Psychiatry & 
Biobehavioral Sciences, UCLA School of Medicine 

Associate Chair, Dept. of Psychiatry & Biobehavioral Sciences, UCLA 
School of Medicine 

Professor of Clinical Psychiatry, Dept. of Psychiatry & 
Biobehavioral Sciences, UCLA School of Medicine 

Senior Research SCientist, UCLA Neuropsychiatric Institute 

Professional Experience 

1972 - 1973 

1973 

1973 -1974 

1974 - 1977 

1977 - 1978 

1978 - 1979 

1979 - 1995 

1988 - 1997 

1995 -

1998 - 2004 

Internship in Internal Medicine, Children's Hospital, San Francisco, 
California 

Staff Physician, Los Angeles County Methadone Maintenance 
Clinic, Los Angeles, California 

Emergency Physician, Mercy Hospital, Bakersfield, & San Leandro 
Memorial Hospital, San Leandro, California 

Psychiatric Residency, UCLA - West LA VA Medical Center, 
Brentwood, California 

Fellowship, Geriatric Psychiatry, NPI&H, UCLA 

Associate Ward Director, geriatric psychiatry inpatient unit, 
NPI&H, UCLA 

Ward Director, geriatric psychiatry inpatient unit, NPI&H, UCLA 

Coordinator, Clinical Geriatric Services, NPI&H, UCLA 

Director, Psychiatric Residency Education, Department of 
Psychiatry and Biobehavioral Sciences, UCLA 

Director, Division of Geriatric Psychiatry, Department of 
Psychiatry and Biobehavioral Sciences, UCLA 

Teaching/Supervisory Experience/Selected Presentations 

1977-1995 

1979 - 1995 

1980 - 1995 

Individual supervision of interns, 1st and 3rd year psychiatric residents assigned 
to 3-South, NPI&H, UCLA 

Seminar in Geriatric Psychiatry given to interns, residents, medical 
and psychiatric fellows, and medical students assigned to Ward 
3-South, NPI&H, UCLA 

Individual supervision of geriatric medical and psychiatry fellows in 
geriatric psychiatry training rotation, Ward 3-South, NPI&H, UCLA 
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1980-1990 

1993 

1994 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2005 

2006 

2008 

2008 

2008 

2010 

2010 

2010 

2011 

Occasional guest lecturer, UCLA School of Law, "Testamentary 
capacity and the expert witness" 

Guest co-lecturer, Loyola Law School Continuing Legal Education 
Program, Los Angeles, Calif. "Competence related litigation and 
Estate Planning" (with M. Hankin, Esq.) 

Co-lecturer, Twentieth Annual USC Probate and Trust Conference, 
"Assessing competency and susceptibility to undue influence: 
conceptual and procedural issues" (with B. Bailey, Esq.) 

Luncheon Speaker, Twenty-third Annual USC Probate and Trust 
Conference, "An Attorney's Guide to Rapid Assessment of Mental 
Status" 

Luncheon Speaker, Twenty-second Annual Fall Program, Estate Planning, Trust 
and Probate Law Section, State Bar of California, "An M.D.'s Guide for Lawyers: 
Elders and Competency" 

Speaker, Beverly Hills Bar Association Spring meeting on "Capacity and Undue 
Influence" 

Luncheon Speaker, Beverly Hills Bar Association Trusts and Estates Section 
meeting, "Competency and Undue Influence - An Update" 

Speaker, st. John's Hospital 58th Post-Graduate Assembly, "Determining Medical 
Decision Making Capacity" 

Speaker, National Organization of Bar Counsel Mid-Year Conference, "The Aging 
Lawyer: Assessment, Diagnosis, and Treatment" 

Speaker, 30th Annual UCLAICEB Estate Planning Institute, "A Lawyers Guide to 
Diminished Capacity and Effective Use of Experts" (with Adam Streisand, LLB) 

Speaker, American College of Trust and Estate Counsel Fall Meeting, Savannah, 
Georgia, "A Psychiatrist's View of Capacity and Undue Influence" (with Adam 
Streisand, LLB, and Meg Lodise, LLB). 

Panelist (with Stuart Zimring, Esq., and Elizabeth Botsford, Esq), Trusts and 
Estates Section of the Beverly Hills Bar Association Program Meeting. Topic: 
Drafting, administration and litigation of vice clauses 

Panelist (with Ed Stone, Esq.), Southern California Probate Conference, Semi­
Annual Update and Roundtable. 

Speaker, LA County Bar Pro babe Volunteer Panel Annual Training Program: 
"Psychotropic medications and the myth of chemical restraints" 

Panelist (with Jane Boubelik, Esq., Isla Garraway, M.D., John Brooks, M.D., and 
James Hynds, Ph.D.), UCLA Health Systems Special Conference on "Treating 
The Incapable Medical Patient Needing Urgent Care" 

3 

6 AA 1195



2012 

2014 

2015 

Grants: Research 

1978 

1983 

1983 

1984 

1986 

Grants: Training 

1982 

1983-89 

1989-92 

1992-95 

1991- Present 

Panelist (with Hon. Reva Goetz, Bruce Ross, Esq, and Alice Salvo, Esq.) Trusts 
& Estates Section of the Los Angeles County Bar Association Annual 
Symposium. Topic: Mental Capacity and Undue Influence. 

Speaker, UCLA Department of Psychiatry and Biobehavioral SCiences Grand 
Rounds, "Assessing Competency in the Elderly" 

Speaker, California CPA Advanced Estate Planning Institute, San Francisco, CA 
(with Adam Streisand), "Mental Disorders that can Erode Capacity and Increase 
Vulnerability to Undue Influence" 

Spar, J.E. (Principal Investigator). Grant #S781018. "A 
double-blind placebo-controlled, multi-clinic study to evaluate the 
safety and efficacy of a total daily dose of 6.0 mg of 
dihydrogenated ergot alkaloids for the treatment of the cognitive, 
affective and behavioral symptoms of dementia associated 
with aging." Sandoz Pharmaceuticals, East Hanover, New Jersey. 

Spar, J.E. (Principal Investigator). Faculty Development Award, 
Summer Otr. 

Spar, J.E. (Principal Investigator). Basic Research Service Grant 
(BRSG). In support of study, "Long-term follow-up of elderly 
patients with major depression or dementia" 

La Rue, A. (P.L), Spar, J.E. (Co-Principal Investigator). 
Opportunity Funds Grant. For continuation of study: "Long-term 
follow-up of elderly patients with major depression or dementia." 
Also funded by the Alzheimer's Disease and Related 
Disorders Association. 

Leuchter, A. (P.L), Spar, J.E. (Co-Principal Investigator). "Mental 
illness in the elderly: Diagnostic testing." NIMH Grant 1 R01 
MHINS 40705-01. 3/1/86-2/28/89. 

Principal Investigator, NIMH Grant 1 T3116590-01. 
"Multidisciplinary Clinical Training: Mentally III Aged" 
8/1/82-10/31/83. 

Principal Investigator, NIMH Grant 1 T01 MH17251-01 thru 06. 
"Multidisciplinary Clinical Training: Mentally III Aged" 
7/1/83-6/30/89. 

Multidisciplinary Clinical Training: Mentally III Aged 7/1/89-6/30/92 

Co-principal Investigator, NIMH Grant n01SM19744-03 
Multidisciplinary Clinical Training: Mentally III Aged 7/1/92-6/30/95 

Co-Principal Investigator, "Department of Veterans Affairs: West 
Los Angeles Veterans Adminstration Medical Center, Brentwood 
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Division; Sepulveda Veterans Administration Medical Center; and 
UCLA Multicampus Fellowship Program in Geriatric Psychiatry" 

Legislative Consultation 

1985 

1995 

Publications - Books 

Co-drafter (with Andrew S. Garb, Esq.) of California Probate Code Section 6100.5 
"Persons Not Mentally Competent to Make a Will; specified circumstances" 

Co-drafter (with Marc B. Hankin, Esq, et al) of the Due Process in 
Competency Determinations Act (SB 730), codified as California Probate 
Code Sections 810 - 813, and Civil Code Section 39 (b) 

1. Colby K, Spar JE: The Fundamental Crisis in Psychiatry: Unreliability of Diagnosis. Springfield, 
Illinois: Charles C. Thomas, 1983. 

2. Spar JE, La Rue A: Concise Guide to Geriatric Psychiatry Washington DC: American Psychiatric 
Press, Inc., 1990; Second Edition, 1997; Third Edition, 2002. 

3. Spar JE, La Rue A: Clinical Manual of Geriatric Psychiatry Washington DC: American Psychiatric 
Publishing, Inc, 2006 

Original research articles 

1. Van Putten T, Spar JE: The board and care home: Does it deserve a bad press? Hospital & 
Community Psychiatry 30:461-464, 1979. 

2. Spar JE, Ford CV, Liston E: Bipolar affective disorder in aged patients. Journal of Clinical 
Psychiatry 504-507, 1979. 

3. Spar JE, Gerner R: Does the dexamethasone suppression test distinguish depression from 
dementia? American Journal of Psychiatry 139:2, 1982. 

4. Spar JE, La Rue A: Major depression in the elderly: DSM-1I1 criteria and the dexamethasone 
suppression test as predictors of treatment response. American Journal of Psychiatry 140:844-
847, 1983. 

5. Spar JE, La Rue A, Liston E: Opiate antagonists in patients with Alzheimer's disease. New 
England Journal of Medicine 209(9):354-355, 1983. (Letter to the Editor, with J. Blass & M. 
Reding; D. Drachman et al.; R. Katzman et al.) 

6. Spar JE, La Rue A: Acute response to methylphenidate as a predictor of outcome of tricyclic 
antidepressant therapy in the elderly. Journal of Clinical Psychiatry 46(11): 466-469,1985. 

7. Leuchter A, Spar JE: The late-onset psychoses: Clinical and diagnostic features. Journal of 
Nervous and Mental Disease 173(8):488-493, 1985. 

8. La Rue A, D'Elia LF, Clark EO, Spar JE, Jarvik LF: Clinical tests of memory in dementia, 
depression and healthy aging. Journal of Psychology and Aging 1(1):69-77, 1986. 

9. La Rue A, Spar JE, Dessonville Hill C: Cognitive impairment in late-life depression: Clinical 
correlates and treatment implications. Journal of Affective Disorders 11:179-184, 1986. 

10. Leuchter A, Spar JE, Walter DO, Weiner H: Electroencephalographic spectra and coherence in 
the diagnosis of Alzheimer's type and multi-infarct dementia. Archives of General Psychiatry 
44:993-998, 1987. 

11. Spar JE: Plasma trazodone concentrations in elderly depressed inpatients: Cardiac effects and 
short-term efficacy. Journal of Clinical Psychopharmacology 7:406-409, 1987. 

12. Spar JE, La Rue A, Hewes CJ, Fairbanks L: Multivariate prediction of falls in elderly inpatients. 
International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry 2:185-188,1987. 

13. Wilkins JN, Spar JE, Carlson HE: Desipramine increases circulating growth hormone in elderly 
depressed patients: A Pilot Study. Psychoneuroendocrinology 14(3):195-202,1989 
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14. Small GW, Matsuyama SS, Ramanujam K, Spar JE, Fairbanks L: HLA antigens in depressed, 
demented, and non-demented elderly. Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry and Neurology 2:70-75, 
1989 

15. La Rue A, Goodman S, Spar JE: Risk factors for memory impairment in geriatric depression. 
Neuropsychiatry, Neuropsychology, and Behavioral Neurology 5(3):178-184, 1992 

16. Leuchter AF, Simon SL, Daly KA, Rosenberg-Thompson S, Abrams M, Dunkin JJ, Cook lA, 
Newton TF, Spar JE: Quantitative EEG correlates of outcome in older psychiatric patients. Part II. 
Two-year follow-up of patients with depression. American Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry. 
2(4):290-299, 1994 

17. McGuire MT, Fawzy F, Spar JE, Weigel RM, Triosi A: Altruism and mental disorders. Ethology 
and Sociobiology 15:299-321, 1994 

18. Spar JE, Hankin M, Stodden A: Assessing mental capacity and susceptibility to undue influence 
Behavioral Sciences and the Law 13(3):391-403, 1995 

Other articles 

1. Ford CV, Spar JE, Davis B, Liston E: Hospital treatment of the elderly neuropsychiatric patient. 
Part I. Journal of American Geriatric Society, Vol. XXVIII, No.1 0, 446-450, 1980. 

2. Spar JE, Ford CV, Liston E: Hospital treatment of the elderly neuropsychiatric patient, Part II. 
Journal of American Geriatric Society, Vol. XXVIII, No. 12, 539-543, 1980. 

3. Spar JE: Dementia in the aged. In L.F. Jaryik and G. Small (Eds.), Psychiatric Clinics of North 
America - Aging, Vol. 5, #1. Philadelphia: W.B. Saunders, 1982. 

4. Spar JE: Pathophysiology of dementia. J. Beck (Moderator): Dementia in the elderly: The silent 
epidemic. Annals of Internal Medicine 97(2):231-241,1982 

5. Spar JE: Affective disorders and dementia. J. Beck (Moderator): Dementia. Annals of Internal 
Medicine 97(2):231-241, 1982. 

6. Jaryik L, Spar JE: Aging and organic mental disorders in the elderly. In B. Wolman (Ed.), 
International Encyclopedia of Psychiatry, Psychology, Psychoanalysis and Neurology. Progress 
Volume I. New York: Van Nostrand Aesculapius, 1983. 

7. Spar JE: Psychopharmacology of Alzheimer's disease. Psychiatric Annals 14(3):186-189, 1984. 
8. Marin RS, Foster JR, Ford CV, Reifler BV, Reisberg B, Robinowitz CB, Sledge WH, Spar JE, 

. Tighe PJ: A curriculum for education in geriatric psychiatry. American Journal of Psychiatry 
145(7): 836-843, 1988 

9. Spar JE, Garb A: Assessing competency to make a will. American Journal of Psychiatry 
49(2):169-174,1992 

10. Chen ST, Altshuler LL, Spar JE: Bipolar disorder in late life: A review. Journal of Geriatric 
Psychiatry & Neurology. 11 :29-35, 1998 

11. Spar, JE: Attorney's guide to competency and undue influence. National Association of Elder Law 
Attorneys Quarterly. 13(3),7-12, 2000 

12. Streisand AF, Spar JE: A Lawyer's guide to diminishing capacity and effective use of medical 
experts in contemporaneous and retrospective evaluations. American College of Trust and Estate 
Counsel Journal 33 (2), Winter, 2008. 

13. Streisand AF, Spar JE: Mental Disorders that Erode Capacity. ABA Trust & Investments, 132, 12-
17, November-December, 2009 

14. Carico CD, Spar JE: Escaping the LPS Revolving Door. Trust and Estates Quarterly 16(1), 24-32, 
Fall,2010 

Book Chapters 

1. SparJE: Drug treatment. In G. Maureen Chaisson (Ed.), Depression in the Elderly: An 
Interdisciplinary Approach. New York: John Wiley & Sons, 1985, p. 193-213. 

2. Spar JE: Psychopharmacologic treatment of depression in elderly patients with cardiovascular 
disease. In C. Shamoian (Ed.), Treatment of Affective Disorders in the Elderly (Monograph). 
American Psychiatric Press, Inc., 1985. 
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3. Spar JE: Principles of diagnosis and treatment in geriatric psychiatry. In Lazarus LW, "Essentials 
of Geriatric Psychiatry" New York, Springer, 1988 

4. Spar JE: Organic Mood Syndrome. Chapter 97 In: Treatments of Psychiatric Disorders. (Karasu 
TB, Ed.) A Task Force Report of the American Psychiatric Association. Washington, D.C. 
American Psychiatric Press, Inc. 1989. 

5. Spar JE: Organic Personality Syndrome. Chapter 98 In: Treatments of Psychiatric Disorders. 
(Karasu TB, Ed.) A Task Force Report of the American Psychiatric Association. Washington, D.C. 
American Psychiatric Press, Inc. 1989. 

6. Spar, JE: Competency and Related Forensic Issues, in The American Psychiatric Press 
Textbook of Geriatric Neuropsychiatry, (Coffey CE, Cummings JL eds.) 2nd ed. Washington, DC 
The American Psychiatric Press, 1999 

7. McGuire M, Fawzy F, Spar JE, Troisi A: Dysthymic disorder, Regulation-Dysregulation Theory, 
CNS Blood Flow, and CNS Metabolism in Sloman L, Gilbert P (Eds): Subordination and Defeat 
An Evolutionary Approach to Mood Disorders and Their Therapy New Jersey Lawrence Erlbaum 
Associates, Inc. 2000 

Letters to editors 

1. Irwin M, Spar JE: Reversible cardiac conduction abnormality associated with administration of 
trazodone. American Journal of Psychiatry 140:7,1983 

2. Spar JE, La Rue A, Liston E: Opiate antagonists in patients with Alzheimer's disease. New 
England Journal of Medicine 209(9):354-355, 1983. (this letter, listed above as "original research 
article" entry #5, also reported original research data by J. Blass & M. Reding; D. Drachman et al.; 
and R. Katzman et al.) 

3. Small GW, Spar JE, Plotkin DA: Oral tetrahydroaminoacridine (THA) in treatment of senile 
dementia, Alzheimer type. New England Journal of Medicine 316(25):1604,1987. 

4. Strouse TB; Salehmoghaddam S; Spar JE. Acute delirium and parkinsonism in a 
bupropion-treated liver transplant recipient. Journal of Clinical Psychiatry: 54(12):489-90, 1993 

5. Spar JE: Virtual Publication. Archives of General Psychiatry 58:203-204, 2001 

In preparation or in press 

1. Read S, Spar, JE: Capacity, Informed Consent and Guardianship, in J. Holzer (Ed.), The Oxford 
University Press Textbook of Geriatric Forensic Psychiatry, 2015 

2. Plotkin D, Spar JE, Horwitz, H:The Role of the Mental Health Expert in Assessing Susceptibility to 
Undue Influence 
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, LOS ANGELES UCLA 

BERKELEY· DAVIS. IRVINE' LOS ANGELES. MERCED· RIVERSIDE. SAN DIEGO. SAN FRANCISCO SANTA BARBARA. SANTA CRUZ 

April 26, 2017 

Barnet Resnick 
Vogt Resnick Sherak, LLP 
4400 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 900 
P.O. Box 7849 
Newpqrt Beach, CA 92658-7849 

Dear Mr. Resnick: 

JAMES E. SPAR, M.D. 
PROFESSOR, DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHIATRY 

& BIOBEHAVIORAL SCIENCES 
DIVISION OF GERIATRIC PSYCHIATRY 

DAVID GEFFEN SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AT UCLA 
760 WESTWOOD PLAZA 

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90024·1759 

At your request I evaluated Mrs. Dinny Frasier, an 87-year old woman, in my office on 
February 28, 2017. Mrs. FraSier was accompanied to my office by Janie Mulrain, a 
professional fiduciary, and Desarai Broyles, her caregiver, both of whom, at Mrs. 
Frasier's insistence, remained In the office during the evaluation, but did not interfere 
with the evaluation in any way. Mrs. Frasier arrived 22 minutes late for the evaluation, 
so the information I was able to gather was somewhat limited. I asked Mrs. FraSier 
why she was being evaluated, inquired about her estate and her estate plans, and 
administered a general mental status examination, a Folstein Mini-Mental State 
Examination (MMSE) and several additional tests of naming, remote memory, and 
frontal executive function as reflected by clock drawing. 

Mrs. Frasier initially thought she was being evaluated for pain in her left hip and back, 
which began when she fell down a flight of 13 stairs a few months ago, But when I 
asked her about recent contact with attorneys, she told me that she had seen Mr. 
Brooks, her regular attorney, and you, and was working on changes in her will and 
trust. She told me that she has three children: 
become estra from all three 

Mrs. Frasier told me that her estate includes her half (the other half is in her late 
husband's trust) of three houses: the one in which she is located in San Juan 
Capistrano (which she said her dalJahter 
with her funds, for anlnrclllil'Ylatf'lv' 
the house in which 
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Irvine, CAi and a house in Palm Springs, She could not recall the address of the house 
in San Juan Capistrano because she only moved there recently, She also has abou~ 
_in cash, . 

On general mental status examination Mrs, Frasier was well dressed and groomed, 
alert and in no distress, and quite cooperative with the examination, Her mood was 
euthymic, her affect was appropriate in direction and degree, but she was visibly 
anxious and shaky and was unable to come up with several personal details until later 
in the evaluation, when she had calmed down a bit. There were no abnormalities of 
the form, flow or content of thought, and her psychomotor behavior was 
unremarkable, She scored 18/30 on the MMSE, losing one point each on orientation to 
the year, month, date, day, season, place, three on recall (although she correctly 
recalled one item with a category prompt), one on three-step command, and one on 
figure copying,. This score is consistent with moderate cognitive impairment for her 
age and advanced education, Her performance on the other tests was mixed: her 
naming and clock drawing were mildly impaired, and her recall of remote, impersonal 
information was more moderately impaired, I do believe that her performance was 
negatively affected by anxiety, and if the evaluation were less rushed and I had the 
opportunity to help her relax and settle down, she would have performed somewhat 
better, 

Based upon this evaluation I believe that Mrs, Frasier has mild to moderate global 
cognitive Impairment. However, despite this impairment, she was able to Identify her 
assets and her heirs, and clearly understood that her trust and will would determine 
the distribution of her wealth after she dies, Further, I did not elicit any thought 
content that suggested a delusional basis for her proposed estate plan chan 
Accordingly, I believe that she retains the testamentary 
Probate Code 100 to modify her estate plan 

also believe that she retains 
not required to rely on her unaided recall dllJlle. 

Since I evaluated her, I have learned that Mrs, Frasier is serving as co-trustee (with 
Premier Trust of Nevada) of her living trust, and I was asked If, in my opinion, she is 
capable of continuing in that role, I believe she does retain the capacity to serve as 
co-trustee, as long as she has a competent co-trustee with whom she can consult In 
the management of trust assets, 

After the above portion of this report was written, I was contacted by your office on 
April 24,2017, to discuss several issues that had been raised about this report, These 
issues were: That my gathering of information was limited due to Ms, Frasier's late 
arrival to the appOintment; that I did not mention that Ms, Frasier hit her head and 
suffered a subdural hematoma when she fell; my conclusion that, in spite of her 
"moderate cognitive impairment" Ms, Frasier retains contractual capacity so long as 
she is not required to rely on her "unaided recall" alone, and my conclusion that she 
can act as co-trustee so long as she has the assistance of a co-trustee, 

i 
I 
I 
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May 22, 2017 

Barnet Resnick 
Vogt Resnick Sherak, LLP 
4400 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 900 
P.O. Box 7849 
Newport Beach, CA 92658-7849 

Dear Mr. Resnick: 

JAMES E. SPAR, M.D. 
PROFESSOR, DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHIATRY 

& BIOBEHAVIORAL SCIENCES 
DIVISION OF GERIATRIC PSYCHIATRY 

DAVID GEFFEN SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AT UCLA 
760 WESTWOOD PLAZA 

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90024-1759 

At your request I evaluated Mrs. Dinny Frasier, an 88-year old woman, in my office on 
May 19, 2017. Mrs. Frasier was accompanied to my office by Janie Mulrain, a 
professional fiduciary, and Rae Juarez, her caregiver, both of whom remained out of 
the office during the 75-minute evaluation. I asked Mrs. Frasier why she was being 
evaluated, inquired about her estate and her estate plans, and administered a general 
mental status examination, a Folstein Mini-Mental State Examination (MMSE) and 
several additional tests of naming, remote memory, frontal executive function (as 
reflected by similarities, word list generation, proverb interpretation, and clock 
drawing), and general information and reasoning. 

Mrs. Frasier said, "I want to fire my Trustee, Premier Trust, especially Nicole". She 
went on to list some of the reason she wants to replace Premier Trust, which has 
headquarters in Nevada, with a Trustee with offices close to where she lives. She said 
that trust officer Nicole has been extremely difficult to reach, that she had scheduled a 
meeting with Nicole and waited for two hours and Nicole never showed up and did not 
call, and that Nicole will not return Mrs. Frasier's calls. She also said that Nicole has 
hired three new attorneys to work on her trust; Mrs. Frasier doubts the services of 
these attorneys are necessary and is concerned about the expense. She also 
complained that Premier Trust is not paying her bills, as promised, and mentioned 
that her house and the surrounding garden need work, but Premier Trust has not paid 
for the necessary services. 

Mrs. Frasier is still unhappy living in the house that her daughter Amy and son-in-law 
Bill Wilson bought for her, after telling her that they would move in with her and help 
take care of her, and then never setting foot in the house and having essentially no 
communication with her. She said, "They lied about all of it". She also spoke a bit 
about her other children. She said her son Brad "Is fighting me in court. He doesn't 
want to pay back money my husband loaned him" (to purchase a medical building), 
and also expressed anger and exasperation towards her daughter Nori, saying, "We 
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(referring to her late husband Joe Frasier) bought them a house, and bought her a 
house, and she owes me and doesn't want to it back". She continues to be 
angry at all three children 

Mrs. Frasier told me that she intends to sell all three of her houses: the one she is 
living in, the one she moved from (at 3 Pinewood Avenue, in Irvine, CAl, and her 
house in Palm Springs. Then she plans to buy a smaller house for herself. 

On general mental status examination Mrs. Frasier was well dressed and groomed, 
alert and in no distress, and quite cooperative with the examination. Her mood was 
euthymic, her affect was appropriate in direction and degree, and there were no 
abnormalities of the form, flow or content of thought. Her psychomotor behavior was 
unremarkable. She scored 15/30 on the MMSE, losing one point each on orientation to 
the year, month, date, day, season, place, floor, city and county; three on recall, and 
one on figure copying. This score is consistent with moderate cognitive impairment for 
her age and advanced education. Her performance on the other tests was mixed: her 
naming was intact, her spontaneous recall of remote, impersonal facts and 
information was moderately to severely impaired, but responded to clues, and her 
frontal executive function as reflected by word list generation was moderately 
impaired. However, on the tests of frontal executive function that I was not able to 
administer the first time I evaluated her, including similarities, proverb interpretation, 
and general information and reasoning, her performance was normal or slightly 
superior to normal. 

Based upon this evaluation I believe that Mrs. Frasier has mild to moderate global 
cognitive impairment, with deficits mainly in spontaneous recall of previously learned 
facts and information, and registration and recall of new information. Despite this 
impairment, her clear understanding of her circumstances was reflected in her ability 
to provide a perfectly rational explanation for her decision to fire her current trustee 
and appoint another. To express this in California statutory language, with respect to 
her decision to replace her trustee, she was able to communicate the decision, and to 
understand and appreCiate, to the extent relevant, the rights, duties, and 
responsibilities affected by the decision; the probable consequences for herself and 
the other persons affected by the decision; and the significant risks, benefits, and 
reasonable alternatives involved in the decision. I believe she is equally competent to 
make other trust-related decisions, such as to hire and fire and work with her 
attorneys as the need arises. 

Sincerely, 

J. Edward Spar, M.D. 
Professor of Psychiatry 
Division of Geriatric Psychiatry 
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September 26, 2017 

Barnet Resnick 
Vogt Resnick Sherak, LLP 
4400 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 900 
P.O. Box 7849 
Newport Beach, CA 92658-7849 

Dear Mr. Resnick: 

JAMES E. SPAR, M.D. 
PROFESSOR, DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHIATRY 

& BIOBEHAVIORAL SCIENCES 
DIVISION OF GERIATRIC PSYCHIATRY 

DAVID GEFFEN SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AT UCLA 
760 WESTWOOD PLAZA 

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90024-1759 

At your request I evaluated Mrs. Dinny Frasier, an 88-year old woman, in my office on 
September 22,2017. Mrs, Frasier was accompanied to my office by Janie Mulrain, a 
professional fiduciary, and Rae Juarez, her caregiver, both of whom remained out of 
the office during the 60-minute evaluation. I asked Mrs. Frasier about events that had 
transpired since my last evaluation of her conducted on May 19, 2017, and then 
administered a general mental status examination, a Folstein Mini-Mental State 
Examination (MMSE) and several additional tests of naming, remote memory, frontal 
executive function (as reflected by similarities, word list generation, proverb 
Interpretation, and ciock drawing), and general information and reasoning. 

Mrs, Frasier told me that she was quite unhappy and discouraged about the way 
things are going in her ongoing conflict with her children, and repeated many of the 
complaints she had registered with me before: that her children are only interested in 
her money and really dori't care about her at all and are causing her continued grief, 
She said, "They are tearing my heart out. They want the money I have in my trust 
and want to put me in a home". She also said, "I have no children, My dogs (Abby, 
Mandy and Lily, all "mutts" rescued from the Irvine Shelter) are my children now". 
She also complained about perSistent pain in the right side of her body, but admitted 
that she was not In pain during the evaluation, which was conducted with her sitting 
comfortably in a wheelchair. She expressed unhappiness about the fact that she may 
be required to appear in court in Reno, Nevada, and indicated that even if she is 
successful in coming to a settlement with her children she has no interest in 
reconciling with any of them. She did acknowledge that her grandson Brendan (Brad's 
son) who is about 15 years old, has called her and even sent her a one pound box of 
See's candy, but she indicated that none of her three children are speaking to her. 
She mentioned a surprise visit from her nephew Ronnie, who lives in "a Chicago 
suburb", but indicated that he only wanted money. 

i 
I 
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Mrs. Frasier is still unhappy living in the house that her daughter Amy and son-in-law 
Bill Wilson bought for her, saying that it "cavernous" and way too big for her. She still 
intends to sell all three of her houses (the one she is living in now, in Mission Viejo; 
her old house in Irvine, and a "one-story bungalow in the desert" near Palm Springs) 
and hopes to find something smaller. 

On general mental status examination Mrs. Frasier was well dressed and groomed, 
alert and in mostly in no distress, with brief periods of distress when she described 
her pain. She was quite cooperative with the examination. Her mood was generally 
euthymic and she displayed an appropriate sense of humor; her affect was 
appropriate in direction and degree, and there were no abnormalities of the form, flow 
or content of thought. Her psychomotor behavior was unremarkable. She scored> 
22/30 on the MMSE, lOSing one point each on orientation to the month, date, day, 
place, city and floor; three on recall (although she correctly recalled one of the items 
with a category prompt), and one on figure copying. This score is slightly better than 
her performance in May, and continues to be consistent with mild cognitive 
impairment for her age and advanced education. Her performance on the other tests 
was mixed: her naming was intact, her spontaneous recall of remote, impersonal facts 
and Information was moderately to severely Impaired, but responded to clues, and her 
frontal executive function as reflected by word list generation was moderately 
impaired. Her frontal executive function as reflected by similarities and proverb 
interpretation was intact, and as reflected by clock drawing was mildly impaired. On 
tests of general information and reasoning her performance was within normal limits. 

Based upon this evaluation I believe that Mrs. Frasier still is functioning in the range 
of mild to moderate global cognitive impairment, with deficits mainly in spontaneous 
recall of previously learned facts and information, and registration and recall of new 
information. Despite these deficits, I believe she is still retains testamentary and 
contractual capacity , is quite aware of her overall circumstances, and remains capable 
of guiding you in the process of seeking a settlement of her current legal dilemma. 

Sin~re~'n n 4 
c;{W ~ 00",,-, 

J. ard Spar, D. 
Pr ssor of Psychiatry 
Division of Geriatric Psychiatry 

I 
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With respect to her late arrival, I believe I elicited enough information to support my 
conclusions. With more time, I may have been able to settle her down a bit and 
possible elicited a better performance on the formal cognitive testing, but I doubt that 
any of my conclusions would have been different. Regarding the subdural, as I 
mentioned in our discussion, exactly how Mrs. Frasier arrived at the state she was in 
on February 28, 2017 is a matter of utter indifference to me, as I was asked only to 
render an opinion about her mental and cognitive status on that date. Her medical 
history could be extremely important if I were a treating physician, as it could be 
relevant to her treatment and prognosis. But since I am not her treating physician, 
her medical history is irrelevant to me. Regarding my conclusions, it is Important to 
note that most of her cognitive impairment is in the area of memory, not receptive' 
language ability or intelligence. Accordingly, it was my opinion that, as of February 29, 
2017, she retained the ability to understand the language of contracts, and to make 
an informed and self-interested decision to enter into a contract, as long as her recall 
of facts and information relevant to the contract could be aided (via notes or the 
assistance of her attorney or other adviser) at the time she enters into the contract. 
Finally, I believe that, because of her cognitive impairment, she would be at 
significant risk of making errors of recall, impulse control, and judgment if she were 
acting as sole trustee of her trust and required to make a lot of day-to-day decisions 
without assistance. But with the assistance of a co-trustee with whom she can work, 
who can "look over her shoulder" and prevent errors of recall, impulse control, and 
judgment, I believe she can continue to serve as co-trustee of her trust despite her 
cognitive impairment. 

Sin rely:, d Ird 
l'c,ttltlllM. ~ ,() 

J ward Spar, . 
ro essor of Psychiatry 
. ision of Geriatric Psychiatry 
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Sandra P. Klein, Ph.D. 

Education 

Licenses 

Professional 
Experience 

1987 - 1992 California School of Professional Psychology 
Clinical Psychology San Diego, Califomia 

PH.D. 

1985-1987 
Experimental Psychology 

M.A. 

1976 -1980 
Psychology & Economics 

B.A. 

California State University 
Long Beach, Califomia 

University of Delaware 
Newark, Delaware 

July 29, 1994 Licensed Clinical Psychologist 

License # PSY 13918 State of California 

8/94 - Present Dove Psychological Associates Newport Beach, CA 

Licensed Clinical Psychologist, Private Practice 

• This position involves conducting PsychologicaUNeuropsychological 
Assessment, and providing Psychotherapy to Adults, Couples, 
Adolescents and Families. Testing includes administration, interpretation, 
report writing, and explanation of test findings to clients and their families, 
fellow clinical psychologists, educational psychologists, geriatricians, 
neurologists, and psychiatrists. Neuropsychological Assessments include 
MedicaULegal evaluations and Capacity evaluations. 

10/2014 - Present University of California Irvine(UCI) Orange, CA 
Department of Family Medicine 
Program in Geriatric Medicine & Gerontology 
Health Assessment Program for Seniors (HAPS) 

Clinical Psychologist/Consulting Neuropsychologist 

• This position involves conducting Brief Neuropsychological Evaluations 
and reviewing the findings of these assessments with the patient and their 
family at a Family Conference two weeks later. This is performed as part 
of the HAPS Consultation Clinic at UCIMC and works with a geriatric 
population assessing dementia, depression, and cognitive functioning as 
part of the HAPS team which includes a Geriatrician, Neuropsychologist, 
Pharmacist, Occupational Therapist and Dietician. Teaching Medical 
Residents and Fellows, as well as Pharmacy students is also a part of the 
position. Lecturing Psychiatric residents intermittently. 

• As a contributor to the GWEP Grant, I help educate primary care medical 
staff about cognitive function within the geriatric population differentiating 
dementia, depression, acquired brain injury and other diagnostic issues. 

1 
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• Another position included in my part time contract with UCI is working on 
the Elder Abuse Forensic Center team. This position involves going out in 
the field to do Brief Neuropsychological Evaluations on a geriatric or 
dependent adult population and assess cognitive function, write reports 
and complete Capacity Declarations if needed. This team works with Adult 
Protective Service, District Attorney's Office in Orange County, Orange 
County Law Enforcement, Council on Aging and other OC community 
agencies. 

9100 -12/12 Coastline Community College 

Acquired Brain Injury Program 

Costa Mesa, CA 

Professional Expert/Consulting Neuropsychologist 

• This position involves supervising and coordinating neuropsychological 
interns, conducting student assessments, consulting with staff on 
individual student cases including direct intervention in crisis situations; 
reviewing applicant files to verify disabilities, coordinating empirical 
research on program outcomes. (1/06-12112) 

Counselor 

• This position involves conducting groups using a 'Future Planning' 
workbcok and working with students individually to help them transition out 
of a two-year cognitive retraining program into further educational or 
career plans. (4/01-3/10) 

6109 -12/10 Alliant International University/CSPP 
Forensic Program 

Professor-Teaching Graduate students Assessment. 

Irvine, CA 

• This position involves teaching Psy.D. graduate students Psychological 

Assessment I, Neuropsychological Assessment, & Projective Tests. 

9/00 - 4/01 Coastline Community College 
Acquired Brain Injury Program 

Psychosocial Instructor 

Costa Mesa, CA 

• This position involves teaching acquired brain injured students 
psychosocial skills in a group setting using didactic lecture and interactive 
partiCipation. 

8/94 - 3/97 San Pedro Peninsula Hospital 

Lakewood Regional Medical Center 

Licensed Clinical Psychologist, Rehabilitation Unit 

San Pedro, CA 

Lakewood, CA 

• This position involved conducling psychological and neuropsychological 
tests; including administration, interpretation, report writing, and 
explanation of findings to inpatient and outpatient clients, their families, 
and other rehabilitation staff. This is as an associate to the main 
neuropsychologist. 
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3/94 - 7/94 Michael S. Daniel, Ph.D. Huntington Beach. CA 

Registered Psychological Assistant 

This position involved conducting psychological and neuropsychological 
tests; including administration, interpretation, report writing, and 
explanation of findings to inpatient and outpatient clients, their families, 
and other rehabilitation staff. 

12/90 - 7194 Douglas E. Harrington, Ph. D. Newport Beach, CA 

Registered Psychological Assistant 

• This position involved conducting Psychological and Neuropsychological 
Tests; including administration, interpretation, report writing, and 
explanation of findings to inpatient and outpatient clients, fellow 
psychologists, educational psychologists, and psychiatrists. It also 
involved conducting psychotherapy with adults, couples, adolescents, and 
families. 

2/94 - 6/94 Coastline Community College Costa Mesa, CA 

Traumatic Head Injury Program 

Instructor for Interact Class 

• This position involved teaching a psychoeducational social skills class, 
including assessing and evaluating students, as well as providing 
information to their families and other staff regarding their psychosocial 
strengths and weaknesses. 

3/89 - 6/90 Coastline Community College 

Traumatic Head Injury Program 

Counselor/Neuroeducational Associate 

Costa Mesa, CA 

• This Internship position involved conducting neuropsychological and 
neuroeducational testing using the Luria-Nebraska Neuropsychological 
Battery and the Cognitive Assessment System. Counseling students 
regarding their progress in the program was also part of this internship. 
Testing included administration, interpretation, report writing, and 
explanation of findings to staff, students, and their families. I also acted as 
a substitute instructor and lecturer at orientation. 

9/90 - 7/91 West County Counseling Center Huntington Beach, CA 

Psychological Intern 

• This Internship position involved providing psychotherapy for adults, 
adolescents, children, and families. It also involved doing Psychological 
Testing including administration, interpretation, report writing, and 
explanation of findings to staff, fellow interns, clients and their families. 
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Curriculum Vitae - Sandra P. Klein, Ph.D. 

Research 
Experience 

Publications 

9/86 - 6/87 California State University 
Community Psychology Clinic 

Long Beach, CA 

Graduate Assistant for Practicum Course 

• This position involved working closely with staff, other students, and 
clients; providing counseling, supervision, and treatment planning. 

4/85 - 5/88 Newport Harbor Hospital Newport Beach, CA 
An Adolescent Acute & Residential Treatment Facility 

Psychiatric Assistant/Shift Leader 

• This position involved providing supervision and management of floor staff 
and patients; including individual, group, and family therapy, treatment 
planning and frequent crisis intervention. 

8/82 - 4/85 Greatwest Health Services, Inc. Orange, CA 

An Outpatient Alcoholism Treatment Facility 

Biofeedback Counselor 

This position involved providing individual counseling, didactic lectures, and 

psychotherapy as a co-leader of a couples group with an adult population. 

9/79 - 6/80 University of Delaware Newark, DE 
Research Assistant for Florence L. Geis, Ph.D. 

• This position involved working on a project dealing with sex-role 
stereotyping. 

6/86 -12/87 California State University Long BeaCh, CA 

Research Assistant for Kenneth F. Green, Ph.D. 

• This poSition involved working on antihistamines and the analgesia 
systems, and developing a tolerance to morphine analgesia from a brief 
exposure to a sweet solution. 

6/90 - 6/92 California School of Professional Psychology San Diego, CA 

Coastline Community College Costa Mesa, Ca. 

Dissertation Mark Sherman, Ph.D. Chairman of Committee 

• This research involved working on social skills training with adults with 
acquired brain injuries. 

Klein, S.P. & Green, K.F. (1988). Tolerance to Morphine Analgesia from 
Brief Exposure to a Palatable Solution. Brain Research Bulletin, Vol. 21, 
pp. 963-965. 

Chao, L., Klein, S.P. & Duran, R. (2011). Effectiveness of Cognitive 
Rehabiliation: An Evaluation of Coastline Community College Acquired 
Brain Injury Program (CCCABI). Archives of Clinical Neuropsychologv. 
Vol. 26, 6 pp. 469. 
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Professional 

Memberships 

References 

American Psychological Association (1993-2018) 

National Academy of Neuropsychology (1995-2018) 

Philip Oncley, Ph.D., Clinical Psychologist 
5212 Katella Ave. #104 
Los Alamitos, CA 90720 
(562) 430-7986 
Email: drphiloncley@gmail.com 

Bonnie Olsen, Ph.D., Clinical Psychologist 
Professor of Clinical Family Medicine 
Vice Chair of Academic Affairs 
Department of Family Medicine 
Keck School of Medicine of USC 
University of Southern California 
1000 South Fremont, Unit 22 
Bldg A-6, Room 6314 
Alhambra, CA 91803 
Office: 626.457.4066 
Mobile: 949.230.7169 
Email: Bonnie.Olsen@med.usc.edu 

Huong-Anh Long, M.D., Physiatrist 
San Pedro Peninsula Hospital Rehabilitation Department 
1300 West Seventh St. 
San Pedro, Ca. 90732 
(310) 514-5377 

Lois Wilkerson, Interim Dean of Special Programs 
Coastline Community College 
Acquired Brain Injury Program (ABI) 
1515 Monrovia Avenue 
Newport Beach, CA 92663 
(714) 546-7600 ext 17201 
Email: Iwilkerson@coastline.edu 

CURRENT CONTACT INFORMATION 

Sandra P. Klein, Ph.D. 
901 Dove Street Suite 150 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
(562) 400-8603 
spkleinphd@gmail.com 
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2 

3 

4 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

In the Matter of the 
5 

Case No: PR16-00128 

6 JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST Dept. No.: 15 [PRJ 

7 

8 

9 

DECLARATION OF JANIE MULRAIN 

I, JANIE MULRAIN, a California Licensed Professional Fiduciary No. 768 and National 

10 Certified Guardian hereby declare as follows: 

11 

12 

13 

1. I am a resident of California. 

2. I am not a party in the above-captioned matter. 

3. I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth below, and if called as a witness, I could 

14 and I would testify competently to the following facts. 

15 
4. Vogt, Resnick, & Sherak, LLP ("VRS") initially contacted me to interview with Dinny 

16 Frasier ("Dinny"). 

17 
5. After interviewing me on December 10, 2016, Dinny appointed me to act as her agent 

18 under her Durable Power of Attorney for Management of Property and Personal Affairs and her 

19 Advance Health Care Directive. 

20 
6. On December 27,2016, Attorney Barnet Resnick, Bruce Schwmtz (DimlY'S friend of 30 

21 years), and I met with Dinny and ascertained her wishes regarding interactions with her children, 

22 which was that she did not want to see them. 

23 
7. Attorney Resnick has been a stalwart advocate for Dinny, personally and professionally, 

24 since the beginning of this case. He keeps in regular contact with Dinny via telephone (including 

25 FaceTime calls) and some in person meetings. He has made himself available days, nights, and 

26 weekends for Dinny's benefit. He works very hard to ensure that Dinny is well taken care of by 

27 her team. 

28 
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2 

3 

4 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

In the Matter of the 
5 

Case No: PR16-00128 

6 JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST Dept. No.: 15 [PRJ 

7 

8 

9 

SECOND DECLARATION OF JANIE MULRAIN 

I, Janie Mulrain, a California Licensed Professional Fiduciary No. 768 and National 

10 Certified Guardian hereby declare as follows: 

II 

12 

13 

I. I am a resident of California. 

2. I am not a party in the above-captioned matter. 

3. I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth below, and if called as a witness, I could 

14 and I would testify competently to the following facts. 

15 4. I have read the Second Supplemental Petition For Instructions ("Petition") filed by 

16 Premier Trust, Inc. ("Premier" or "Petitioner"). The information conveyed in the Petition 

17 contains half-truths, innuendos without supporting proof and outright mischaracterization 0 

18 events and facts. 

19 
5. Vogt, Resnick, & Sherak, LLP ("VRS") initially contacted me to interview with Dinny 

20 Frasier ("Dinny"). 

21 
6. After interviewing me on December 10, 2016, Dinny appointed me to act as her agent 

22 under her Durable Power of Attorney for Management of Property and Personal Affairs and her 

23 Advance Health Care Directive. 

24 
7. On December 13, 2016, I participated in an all-hands conference call with Attorney 

25 Resnick, Nicole Shrive of Premier, Attorney Robertson, and his partner Richard D. Williamson 

26 (collectively "Dinny's Team") to discuss the case matter and plan next steps of action. Dinny's 

27 Team instructed me to: A) marshal Dinny's personal Bank of America account (as they 

28 suspected unauthorized access by Nori Frasier, Dinny's daughter who stayed with Dinny at the 

1 
Second Declaration of Janie Mulrain 

6 AA 1218



1 time); B) work with Ms. Shrive to move Dinny back to Irvine, CA in a house with 2417 care or 

2 an assisted living facility; C) take videos to document contents of her unoccupied homes in 

3 Irvine ("Irvine Propetty") and Palm Desett ("Desert Property"); and D) change the locks for her 

4 three properties to secure and prevent fmther access by unauthorized persons. 

5 8. I replaced locks for Dinny's San Juan Capistrano residence ("SJC Property") and the 

6 Irvine Property on December 21st and 22nd of 2016, respectively. Dinny and Ms. Shrive 

7 approved storing the SJC ProPelty key in a lockbox with only authorized persons having the 

8 code to access it because keys went missing in the past. 

9 9. After I implemented the lockbox, I received a voicemail and e-mails from Nori 

10 demanding the key so that she can access Dinny's home office. I told Nori that she was not 

11 authorized. 

12 10. I informed Ms. Shrive and Attorney Resnick of these incidents and incidents that Dinny's 

13 caregivers had relayed to me, and reported a break-in to the county Adult Protective Services. 

14 11. On December 27, 2016, Attorney Resnick, Bruce Schwartz, and I met with Dinny and 

15 ascetiained her wishes regarding interactions with her children, which was that she did not want 

16 to see them. 

17 12. Since December 2016, numerous 3,d patties intruded in Dinny's life, either on their own 

18 accord or on behalf of Dinny's children making it necessary to take steps to minimize stress to 

19 Dinny pursuant to her wishes. Such third parties include Craig Woods, Shirley Axelrod, Nasser 

20 S. Bakhtiari a.k.a. Russell, and an unknown person who contacted Ms. Shrive directly. All 0 

21 these episodes and information were shared with Ms. Shrive. 

22 13. Craig Woods - Dinny informed me and Ms. Shrive at a meeting on January 6, 2017, that 

23 Craig Woods, Brad's close friend from high school, had visited her two days in a row, and that 

24 she did not want him to be so intrusive in her life. For example, he insisted on attending all 

25 medical appointments with her and tried to "meddle in her financial and family affairs." Ms. 

26 Shrive affirmed her knowledge of the circumstance surrounding Mr. Woods' involvement 

27 shottly after Dinny's altercation with het· son Brad. 

28 
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1 14. On January 10, 2017, DimlY's caregiver informed me that Mr. Woods showed up 

2 unexpectedly and when told that Dinny could not see her, he forced entry. I immediately caUed 

3 and spoke with Mr. Woods and asked him to leave. I informed him that he needs to call Dinny 

4 and ask to stop by before he visits. Upon informing Ms. Shrive, she authorized me to install a 

5 video door monitor at the SJC Propelty so that Dinny and her caregivers can see who is at the 

6 door without opening it. 

7 15. On April 13, 2017, while Dinny and her caregiver were at a meeting at my office, Barry 

8 Lowe, the contractor who was installing safety modifications at Dinny's home, called and 

9 informed me that Mr. Woods came to visit Dinny. When Mr. Lowe told Mr. Woods that Dinny 

10 was not home, Mr. Woods told him the dramas of the family situation and litigation, then 

11 loitered around the front of the house. When seen, Mr. Woods appeared to leave, but would 

12 retul'll. Upon hearing this, Dinny reiterated that she does not want Mr. Woods to visit her 

13 anymore. 

14 16. Mr. Lowe then texted me pictures to confirm that Mr. Woods was still in his parked car 

15 in front of DimlY's home. Dinny asked me to call the police to make him leave before she 

16 returned home. I reported this incident to Ms. Shrive on April 18, 2017. 

17 17. Shirley Axelrod - In February and March of20l7, Dinny and her caregiver called and 

18 left me messages regarding Ms. Axelrod's continued intrusion into Dinny's family affairs on 

19 behalf of DillllY's son-in-law Bill Wilson. 

20 18. Nasser S. Bakhtiari a.k.a. Russell - I first became aware of Russell when Ms. Shrive 

21 asked me to assist her in marshalling note repayments belonging to the Trust. Ms. Shrive 

22 informed me that Russell is a real estate agent who had prior business dealings with Dinny's 

23 deceased husband. He and another agent named "Tony" were the real estate agents who 

24 represented Dinny in the purchase of the SJC Property. There have been snbstantial defects 

25 discovered since the SJC Propelty purchase, such as broken garbage disposal, broken air 

26 conditioning, two non-operative water fountains, broken stove spark/ignitor, and electrical 

27 problems with OF! being tripped and outlets going out multiple times during the day, and faulty 

28 sprinkler system. 
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I 19. On March 10, 2017, Dinny's caregiver called me to tell me that Dinny was extremely 

2 upset because Russell was at her house arguing with Dinny about allowing Bill and Amy to 

3 come live with Dinny and to take care of her. I immediately called Dinny, and heard a male 

4 voice in the background coaching her to ask for financial records pertaining to the purchase 0 

5 the SJC Property. I called Attorney Resnick and Ms. Shrive to report this incident, and asked 

6 Ms. Shrive to provide copies of home purchase documents. 

7 20. On March 16,2017, Dinny met with Attorney Resnick, Mr. Schwartz, Attorney Gina 

8 Kim at VRS, and me to discuss recent intrusions by Shirley Axelrod and Russell. Dinny 

9 affirmed that she wished to have peace in her life and that she did not wish to communicate with 

10 them. I followed up by blocking their phone numbers from Dinny's home phone. 

II 21. On April 7, 2017, I received a call and message from Dinny's caregiver that Tony and 

12 Russell made an unannounced visit and Russell was upsetting Dinny about issues with his 

\3 reconveyance deeds in connection with the loans that he paid off. Russell got on the phone and I 

14 informed him that Dinny had previously provided instructions that he was not to contact her and 

15 that he should contact Attorney Resnick or Ms. Shrive's office regarding his deeds. I followed 

16 up with Ms. Kim at VRS and called Russell to confirm he had left Dinny's house and relayed 

17 that VRS would be in contact with him. 

18 22. That same day, I phoned Dinny's residence to check in with her, and spoke with Dinny's 

19 caregiver who relayed that Russell told Dinny to fire everyone. I reported this to Ms. Shrive. 

20 23. Russell attempted to short pay one month's worth of loan payment to the Trust by 

21 claiming that Attorney Resnick granted him permission. I confirmed with Attorney Resnick that 

22 he had made no such allowance. 

23 24. I took great lengths to help Dinny minimize her stress from antagonizing effOlts by 

24 family members and their surrogates. I promoted positive interactions with other members 0 

25 Dinny's family and friends. Examples include informing Dinny's nephew Ronnie Grey that he 

26 may freely communicate with Dinny as long as the interaction is positive and does not distl'ess 

27 her, relaying Nori's request for Dinny to call her husband on his bitthday, relaying Nori and her 

28 family's birthday wish to Dinny and instructing Nod to send Dinny's gift directly to Dinny, 
4 

Secane! Declaration of Janie Mulrain 

6 AA 1221



1 having DimlY call her granddaughter Sara Cady and confirming Sara's ability to send mail 

2 directly to Dinny, clarifying any misunderstanding to ensure that grandkids are able to contact 

3 Dinny directly as long as there are no ulterior motive or interference by others, encouraging 

4 DimlY to allow the Cady grandchildren to visit on Mother's Day when Dinny was reluctant up to 

5 the morning of the event, relaying Bill and Amy Wilson's inquiry into Ditmy's well-being and 

6 status, and facilitating a visit with Dinny's friends Bill and Linda. 

7 25. Despite Dinny's statements to me about terminating Ms. Shrive and Premier from the 

8 onset of my appointment, I made numerous attempts to foster and bridge Dinny's relationship 

9 with Ms. Shrive. I suggested an i-Pad for Dinny so that she can utilize facetime to interact with 

10 others and members of Dinny's Team. I worked with Ms. Shrive and her assistant to procure a 

11 TV and patio furniture for Dinny and presented them to Dinny as efforts made by Ms. Shrive to 

12 foster goodwill. 

13 26. Though I attended Dinny's meeting with Ms. Shrive on January 6, 2017, I have no 

14 knowledge of Ms. Shrive's discussion with Dinny as repOlted in Ms. Shrive's statement numbers 

15 43 through 48. Pursuant to Dinny's request, I was present during the entire meeting with the 

16 exception of a few minutes. During the meeting, the two made small talk, Ms. Shrive showed 

17 Dinny a general overview of her bank accounts, and Dinny discussed a recent visit by Mr. 

18 Woods and his mother. 

19 27. Ms. Shrive is aware I opened an Opus Bank account for Dinny's personal funds and 

20 closed her Bank of America personal account because it was done to marshal Dinny's personal 

21 assets to prevent unauthorized access to her funds. Ms. Shrive closed the Bank of America trust 

22 account for this purpose as well. 

23 28. I have never requested funds from Ms. Slu'ive to pay Dinny's bills. After reviewing bills 

24 with Dinny, my office forwards them to Premier to remit payment. Dinny's credit card was 

25 declined and temporarily cancelled by the creditor in March 2017 due to non-payment. 

26 29. Background surrounding the only transfer to date from trust funds to Ditmy's personal 

27 account in the amount of $68,545.00 stems from Ms. Shrive's attempt to obtain VRS invoices. 

28 
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1 30. On January 16, 2017, I forwarded a redacted copy of the December 20, 2017 VRS 

2 invoice with Dinny's initials after reviewing it with her to Ms. Shrive to remit payment, and 

3 informed Ms. Shrive that the copy was redacted to preserve Attorney-Client privilege and to 

4 comply with Dinny's wish to not provide that information to Ms. Shrive. I did not hear back 

5 from Ms. Shrive so I remitted VRS's payment from Dinny's personal funds on January 29,2017 

6 with the second invoice dated January 20, 2017. 

7 31. On February 1,2017, I facilitated a facetime chat between Dinny and Ms. Slu'ive where 

8 Ms. Shrive discussed selling the Mercedes, Irvine and Palm Desert Property and asked Dinny 

9 about VRS invoices. I informed Ms. Shrive that I've already remitted December and January 

10 invoices since I did not hear back from her. Ms. Shrive then informed us that she will remit 

11 payment going forward. 

12 32. Subsequently, Ms. Shrive asked for ulll'edacted VRS invoices. I reminded her that Dinny 

13 did not authorize that so I would continue to remit payments out of her personal funds. 

14 33. On April 18, 2017, Ms. Shrive called me regarding DimlY's whereabouts. We also 

15 discussed incidents involving Craig Woods, Dinny's request for cleaning and gardening service 

16 at her SJC Pl'Operty, and she asked about Dinny's personal funds and VRS invoices. I told Ms. 

17 Shrive that I would continue to remit payment from DimlY's personal funds since there was more 

18 than $80,000.00 in the account. 

19 34. Ms. Shrive told me that she would reimburse Dinny's personal account for amounts that 

20 I've already expended if! e-mail her only the amount. Dinny's personal account still has funds to 

21 date without the one-time reimbUl'sement from Ms. Shrive. 

22 35. Since the onset of my tenure with Dinny, she has repeatedly voiced her displeasure 0 

23 Premier and trustee counsels in Reno, NV. She consistently requested dismissal of Premier Trust 

24 and "the trust lawyers in Reno." 

25 36. I often had to facilitate cooperation and communication between Premier Trust and 

26 Dinny. Examples include taking care of tasks in connection with trust assets as requested by 

27 Dinny as well as by Premier, and relaying information and requests by Premier on behalf of Ms. 

28 Shrive. I also received requests from Ms. Shrive and Attorney Resnick to assist in obtaining 
6 
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Dinny's signature on documents. I advised Dinny each time that I am not acting on behalf a 

2 any third party, my fiduciary responsibility is to her, that I can help explain documents she is to 

3 execute, but deferred to Ms. Shrive or Dinny's attorneys to advise her on trust matters. 

4 37. Ms. Shrive stated to me numerous times that she is reluctant to contact Dinny because she 

5 is aware of Dinny's displeasure with her and the trust litigation. I told Ms. Shrive on several 

6 occasions that she should contact Dinny directly regarding trust matters. 

7 38. Ms. Shrive does not always return calls that I make on behalf of Dinny. For example, on 

8 March 9, 2017, I received a call from Ms. Shrive asking if! have knowledge of Nori's move 

9 back to DillllY'S SJC Property. On three occasions thereafter, I asked for the name and phone 

10 number of the neighbor who repOlted this to Ms. Shrive so I can follow-up to see how the 

II misinformation could be misconstrued, and Ms. Shrive never responded. 

12 39. Conditions of the Irvine Property, SJC Propelty, and Palm Deselt Property were 

13 documented pursuant to requests made by Ms. Shrive and shared with her verbally, by emails, 

14 and through pictures saved on a CD and mailed to her office. Item 27 in Ms. Shrive's 

15 declaration indicates that she is not aware of any issue with either Dinny's home or garden, but 

16 the condition of the homes and their contents were previously communicated to her. Ms. Shrive's 

17 declaration mentioned that Dinny does not need distribution to her personal funds because 

18 Premier viltually pays all of the bills. Since Premier pays all of the bills, then Premier should 

19 know whether or not housekeeping and gardening services were being paid for the Irvine, SJC 

20 and Palm Deselt properties. If such bills were not paid for the past two years, Premier should 

21 have known that the properties were not maintained well, and if such bills ~ paid, then 

22 Premier should not have continued to pay for services that clearly have not been provided. 

23 40. In April 2017, Ms. Shrive informed me that Premier took care of filing Dinny's personal 

24 and trust tax retul'lls. Requests for Dinny's personal tax returns were made verbally in March 

25 2017 and in writing on April 4th and May 24th of 2017. Dinny and I have yet to receive a 

26 response from Premier. It appears that Dinny's 2015 income taxes may not have been filed as 

27 Dinny received a notice dated April 26, 2017 from the California Franchise Tax Board ("FTB") 

28 regarding failure to file a personal tax retul'll for 2015 tax year. As Dinny's personal 
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representative, I am not able to respond on her behalf to the FTB without information from Ms. 

2 Shrive. 

3 41. I declare under penalty of peljury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the 

4 foregoing is true and correct. 

5 Executed in Irvine, California, this}6th day of June, 2017. 
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By:, __ ~~\I~n(()~ __ 4 __ ~~ ____ __ Janie~ 
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2 

3 

4 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

5 In the Matter of the Case No: PR16-00128 

6 JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST Dept. No.: 15 [PRJ 

7~--------------------------------~ 

8 DECLARATION OF JANIS NIEDER 

9 I, JANIS NIEDER, hereby declare as follows: 

10 1. I am a resident of California. 

11 2. I have personal knowledge of the facts set fOlth below, and if called as a witness, could 

12 and would testify competently to the following facts. 

13 3. I am an RN Care Manager for RN Health Management, a Professional Nursing 

14 Corporation. Dinny G. Frasier ("Dinny"), a patty in the above-captioned matter, is a patient 

15 under my care. I have known and cared for Dinny since approximately April 20, 2017. 

16 4. On or about July 30, 2018, I met with Dinny and her caregiver Mattha at a follow up visit 

17 with Dr. Chuang-Kuo Wu at the University of California, Irvine Medical Center. Dr. Wu was 

18 delayed for over an hour, so I visited with Dinny to pass the time. I asked her if her family has 

19 been visiting her. She answered "yes" and I replied "Oh, that's good." She said, "No, that's not 

20 good." I said, "Oh, I thought that would be fun." She said, "No, not fun." Her face became 

21 tense and she started to breathe rapidly, which is what she does when she has anxiety. I tl'ied 

22 pursed lip breathing with her, but that was ineffective in calming her. I pulled up pictures 0 

23 dogs on my cell phone and showed her funny pictures, causing her to laugh and calming her 

24 anxiety immediately. 

25 5. Previously, Dinny was adamant about not wanting to see her children again. Dr. Haga 

26 and I would periodically ask Dinny if she would like to rekindle the relationships with her 

27 children. Janie was very suppOltive of this. However, Dinny would repeat her children's 

28 emotional and financial transgressions and say she did not want to see them. After many mfnths 
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1 of gently asking if she would consider it again, she did decide to give it a try and said, with a 

2 sigh, "I'm not getting any YOllllger and I guess ifI'm going to do it, I should." 

3 6. I have frequently observed the tension that mention of DimlY's children brings her. She 

4 will not tell them how upset she is when they push her dUl'ing their conversations. I have 

5 observed her on the phone with her children when I am at her home. She talks to them 

6 pleasantly, but when she hangs up she says how much the calls upset her. She asks why they call 

7 her and then she says they just want something. She then needs redirection to get her mind of 

8 the call. 

9 7. I have been made aware of the fact that the family visits have been very long and 

10 inappropriately stressful for her. It is my opinion that the visits should be kept to a maximum 0 

11 three (3) hours and that they should be supervised. The topics of money, the trust, and who gets 

12 what when she dies should never be brought up during a visit. These topics are inappropriate 

13 and cause her undue anxiety. 

14 8. The only time I noticed Dinny is stressed is when the topic of her children comes up. She 

15 drops her head and her facial expressions demonstrate sadness and sometimes anger. She will 

16 also at times express her frustration and anger. However, if she is redirected about something 

17 else, she smiles again. 

18 9. In addition to having an outstanding team of caregivers and associated staff with A 

19 Family Home Care, Dinny has a professional fiduciary, Janie Mulrain, who maintains consistent 

20 communication with me, RN Health Management and A Family Home Care to coordinate the 

21 best possible care for Dinny. 

22 10. I have read Amy's objections and allegations. These claims are not substantiated by 

23 Dinny's physicians and medical records. All medications are given according to physician's 

24 orders and reviewed by the pharmacist. Janie had also spearheaded review of Dinny's care by 

25 obtaining second opinion evaluation with the Health Assessment Program for Seniors (HAPS) 

26 team at the University of California, Irvine (UCI). This is a specialized program that provides a 

27 comprehensive consultation for seniors with multiple chronic conditions. The Assessment was 

28 
2 

DECLARATION OF JANIS NIEDER 

6 AA 1228



1 done on July 12, 2018. She was seen there by multidisciplinary specialists in elder care, 

2 including a Clinical Psychologist and Pharmacist who specializes in Geriatric Medicine. 

3 1l. Amy also claimed to have called me several times with no response. On June 10, 2018, I 

4 had called the house for a routine wellness check and to get an update from Dinny and the 

5 caregiver. Amy took the phone from care giver Karen, and Amy was notably concerned about 

6 medication issues. I did reassure her that the issues were being addressed and that I would let the 

7 doctor know about her concerns. My supervisor Lee-Anne Godfrey did receive a voice mail 

8 from Amy expressing concerns and it was forwarded to me. And I did follow-up and report 

9 Amy's concerns regarding the cough with DimlY's Primary Care Physician. The cough was 

10 being monitored at that time. I was already rep011ing to him on that issue. I did not call Amy 

11 back because Dinny did not provide authorization nor do I have any HIPAA consent to release 

12 medical information with Amy. Those were the only known communications with Amy. 

13 12. On or about August 14, 2018, I went to see Dinny for a well-being checkup. I asked 

14 Dinny to stand up li01n the recliner and walk around the house for exercise. Mattha, the 

15 caregiver assigned to her that day, gave Dinny support so she could stand. While Dinny was 

16 standing, I gently examined her neck for bruises or any sign of trauma. I was able to examine 

17 her entire neck during her walk. I saw no signs of bruising or injury to the tissue on her neck. 

18 13. In the time I have known Dinny, I have never had any cause for concern regarding 

19 Dinny's physical or psychological well-being in the hands of her caregivers. Her team 0 

20 caregivers and case managers have always made sure that Dinny gets the best care and that her 

21 needs are met. Dinny is always clean, well-groomed, and fed nutritious, well-balanced meals. 

22 They also take care of her three dogs. 

23 14. Dinny's fiduciary - Janie Mulrain has always been supp011ive of whatever is best for 

24 Dinny while taking care to honor Dimly's wishes and choices. She has gone above and beyond 

25 in her caring for Dinny and making sure all her medical and emotional needs were met. Any 

26 suggestion otherwise, would be false. 

27 

28 
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I declare under penalty of peljury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is 

2 true and correct. 

3 Executed in Laguna Hills, California, this II th day of September, 2018. 
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By; 

/a--J~/ --0.e~~ 

JANIS NIEDER 
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1 

2 

3 
IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

4 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

5 In the Matter of the Case No: PR16-00128 

6 JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY 'l'RUST Dept. No.: 15 [PRJ 

7~------------------------------~ 

8 DECLARATION OF CHIPIWA "STELLA" WILLIAMS 

9 I, CHlPlWA "STELLA" WILLIAMS, hereby declare as follows: 

10 1. I am a resident of California. 

11 2. I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth below, and if cal1ed as a witness, could 

12 and would testify competently to the following facts. 

13 3. I am employed by Family HOllle Care, Inc. and was assigned to Dinny G. Frasier 

14 C'Dinny"), a party in the above-captioned matter, as a Home Care Aide. 

15 4. My scheduled hours with Dinny were Saturdays and Sundays from 7 AM to 71'M, that 

16 may include holidays. 

17 5. I believe Dinny is a wonderful person and I enjoyed caring for her. J{owever, I have 

18 asked to be removed from DimlY's assignment because I am uncomfortable with the family 

19 dynamics between Dinny and her daughter, Amy Wilson, and Amy's husband Bill ("Amy and 

20 Bill"). Amy and Bill visited Dinny at her home during several of my shifts and I witnessed their 

21 interactions with Dinny and interacted with them myself for approximately 15 hours over four 

22 weekends. 

23 6. On or about July 27, 2018, I spoke with Jonathan Irish, Vice President of Operations at 

24 Family Home Care, Inc. regarding my concerns about Dinny's family, Amy and Bill. When 

25 Amy and Bi\[ visited Dinny in her home, they spent the maj ority of their time investigating 

26 everything. They repeatedly asked Dinny about her financial matteI's, her other children and how 

27 often they visit, what she discusses with them when they visit, etc. Amy and Bill became visibly 

28 fntstrated when Dinny could not recall the details or infonnation they were seeking and wOllld 
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1 then direct their questions to me. Atta.ched hereto as Exhibit A are a true and correct copy of my 

2 notes dated July 22, 2018 with examples ofthe types of questiollS they would ask Dinny and me. 

3 I always referred them to Family Home Care, Inc. for any question>~ and would intervene if 

4 Dhmy showed signs of frustration or agitation. 

5 7. On or about the weekend of July 28, 2017, Nny and Bill visited Dinny. They were 

6 scheduled for 1 PM to 4 PM, but did not arrive until 2 PM and stayed w\til 7 PM. As with 

7 previous visits, Nny and Bill questioned and pressured Dinuy regarding her estate planning, 

8 personal family issues, and financial issues. On this particular visit, Amy and Bill recorded 

9 Dhmy's re.~ponses to their questions 01\ camera. Using a phone calUera Bill recorded DimlY 

10 while NI1Y asked her questions. They continued to put DhUlY under a lot of pressure, asking her 

11 questions like "Did you leave your will to Janie or not?" or "Who did you leave YOllr money to?" 

12 "Who did you give power of attomey to?" DimlY's responses to these questions were "Yes, I 

13 gave the Power of Attorney to Janie. And I gave it to you too." Amy and Bill asked me 

14 questions about Dinny's credit cards, they said things like "we know she doesn't have any money 

15 right now, she can't even afford to buy a hamburger." Duri.ng this 'Iisit Nny and Bill took 

16 pictW'es ofDitlliY's mouth stating that Dinny needed to go to the dentist.. As before, I directed 

17 /W\~I and Rill to Gontaot the agenoy office with th~ir qU~BtionB. 

18 8. During a visit by mnny's other daugtel~ Nod, she accompanied Dinny on an outing to a 

19 movie. After the movie, Non took Dinny to dinner and we did not return to Dinny's home until 

20 8:41 PM. Due to the delay, my shift was extended an extm hour as I was scheduled to change 

21 shifts at 7 PM with the next caregiver, who was waiting at Dinny's home. 

22 I declare under penalty ofpeljufY under the laws of the State of Nevada that the 

23 foregoing is tflle and corre,t 

24 Execllted in ,i"gj;G. F~· , California, this ~ day of August, 2018. 

BY~ -CiPWA "STELLA" WlLLlAMS 

25 

26 

27 

28 
2 
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Jul. 27. 2018 12:01PM U' flo. 1818 P. I 
A. r am4A.(y 7T- ()1oWe/ C fM"'~ I IUY. 

, NARRATIVE NOTES ARE REQUIRED FOR EVERY SHIFT 
···PLEASE DO NOT SKIP LINES, USE FRONT & BACK, SIGN AFTER EACH ENTRY"· 

DAlE 

I 

TIME NARRATIVE (Include Activities, Medication 9bservatioll, Client Updates, Visitors, etG.) 

r< ~C-~ .:l-i Vl-1\( 5,S ~ v\.c h 1ft ~ IA 6 u .. \" ~~~~ 
1C r<i:Do.J..;;-l!" ",,1 ,"tl:..JVvYl--titt,.J r.~_ ,~~ w~ ~'J 
I t.\'b0, "'" ,(')<1 LCl iA p, D ~ " ~ ~ i5'U- 4'v-"- ~ ,-",tJ:\ 

-r----r--~----------------------~----------------~ 

lID 2003 Family Home Cafe,lno. All Rlghls R~.~lVed. Ver. January 2015 
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Kelly Woo 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

J <administrator@sprynet.com> 
Friday, July 27, 2018 12:22 PM 
Janie Mulrain 

SUbject: Statement From CG Stella 
Attachments: + 19497703080-0727 -120952-248[11.pdf 

Hi Janie, 

Stella visited my office today and we had the chance to discuss her Saturday and Sunday shifts with Dinny Frasier. Stella 
communicated to me that she's uncomfortable with the manner in which Amy and Bill communicate with her, and with 
Dinny. I asked that she write down her observations, and I've attached that to this email for your records. 

Stella mentioned that the majority of the time Bill and Amy are in the home they are "investigating everything", asking Dinny 
repeatedly about her financial matters, about her other children and their visitation frequency, what is discussed with her 
other children, etc. Stella stated that Bill and Amy become visibly frustrated as Dinny can't seem to recall the details or 
information they are seeking, so they then direct their questioning at Stella - something she is uncomfortable with. She states 
that she always refers them to call the agency for any questions, and that she attempts to intervene and advocate for Dinny's 
wellbeing if Dinny shows signs of frustration or agitation. She is uncomfortable asking Bill and Amy to cut their visit off - but 
thinks that they stay past the time Dinny is actively engaged in the visit. 

Jonathan Irish 
Vice President of Operations 
Family Home Care, Inc. 
P: 
805-458-0002 
F: 
866-480-9809 
E: 
administrator@sprvnet.com 

www.familyinhomecare.com 

Northern Sta. Barbara County & SLO County Communities, California: 
P: 805-481-6081 
CA Home Care Organization License # 404700009 

All Orange County Communities, California: 
P: 949-770-3009 
CA Home Care Organization License # 304700051 

Tucson & Surrounding Southern Arizona Communities: 
P: 520-323-1010 

Phoenix, Scottsdale & East Valley Communities, Arizona: 
P: 480-644-0084 

Confidentiality Note: This email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is privileged, confidential or othen'lise 
protected from disclosure. Dissemination, distribution or copying of this email or the information herein by anyone other than the intended recipient, or on employee or agent 

1 
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2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICr COURT 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COlJNTY OF WASHOE 

8H~~~~~ ______________ ~~~ __ ~~~~ 
9 '1111 the Matter of the Case No: PRI 6-00 128 

10 
Il i JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST Dept. No.: 
12 i 

15 [PRJ 

13 
14 
15 DECLARATION OF LAlJRA GERMANO 
16 T, LAURA GERMANO, hereby declare as follows: 
17 1. I am a resident of California. 
1& 2. I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth below, and if called as a witness, could 
19 and would testify competently to the following facts. 
20 3. I am employed by Family Home Care, Inc. and am assigned to Dinny G. Frasier 
21 ("Dinny"), a party in the abovcRcaptioncd matter, as a Home Care Aide. 
22 ~ 4. My scheduled hours ,.Vith Dinny are Friday's from 71)M to 7AM: with occasional Sunday's, 
23 7 AM to 7PM, including holidays. 
24 5. On or about September 9, 201&, Dinny's daughter Amy Wilson ("Amy") called to infonn 
25 inny that she was going to be late as she was still doing some grocery shopping. Her call Was 
26 around 2 PM. Dinny had a late breakfast that moming so I asked her if she was hungry and she 
27 Isaid "yes." 1 started to make a fruit and coconut milk smoothie for her when the doorbell rang. It 
28 took me a few minutes to answer the door because I had to put the caregiver book, iPad, and 

IDitmy's purse away as instructed by 1h~ caregiver agency. 
6. I opened the door and Amy demanded that I open the garage. Amy's husband Bill \Vilson 

("Bill"), entered the residence with his two dogs on a leash, introduced himself, and proceeded 
into the garage. 

7. As soon as Amy entered the residence, she asked me what I was doing. I replied that I was 
making Dinny a smoothie, something light for her to eat until dinner was done. Amy asked me 
.hat the smoothie contained and I answered. Amy then replied angrily, ''1 am going to be really 

pissed at you if my mother doesn't eat my dinner. I am not going to all this trouble for her not to 
eat." As I could sense that Amy's visit was not going to be peaceful due to her attitude and 
oomments she made, I deferred and put the smoothie in the refrigerator. l1eftthe kitchen and let 
Amy and Bill do what they needed. 

8. Amy started asking me if 1 had instmctiolls regarding how 10 clean and maintain the 
granite countertops. She complained that the countertops are very expensive and we [the 
caregivers] are mining it. Dinny was sitting in the reclining chair watching TV and Amy 
complained that the TV was too loud. I lowered the volume a little bit, but then Dinny could not 
hear it so J adjusted the volume to her liking. 

9. Amy kept asking me questions, e.g. when do I work with Dinny, for how long was I there. 
I kept my answers vague and replied that any concerns should be brought up to the company. 
Amy kept cooking and talking in a very low voice to her husband. 

10. After assisting Dinny to the restroom and back to her chair, I noticed Bill had opened 
drawers and wsa taking pictures of all the papers in them. I contacted the office and Raquel Care 
Manager infonned me that is not allowed. I told Amy and Bill to please stop taking pictures. 
Amy shouted, "I cannot take pictures of my mother?H I replied, UOfDjnny yes, but not of things 

lin the drawers and cabinets." Amy started getting angry and complained. They complained 
things wcre missing in the house that supposedly belonged to them. Amy told Dinny there were 
items in the house that had been stolcn, making Dinny uncomfortable in her own home. During 
the entirety of this exchange, Bill was wearing headphones with a microphone attached and I am 
not sure if he recorded everything. 

11. \Vhen they finished cooking, I assisted Dinny to the table and let them cnjoy their meal. 
Bill recorded the start of dinner with Dinny at the table. I stayed in tIte adjacent living room 

area. I observed Amy asking DUUlY many questions, e.g. "Have you heard of dus person? Do 
you have any mail?" Then she asked Dinny ifDinny wanted her mail and Dinny said yes. Amy 
then walked to the front of the house to retrieve the mail. \Vhen I asked her if she needed any 
help, she got angry and started cursing at me, saying that her mother "asked her for the fucking 
mail/I I called the ofl:ice. Amy got very close to me and insulted me, threatening me and saying 
I had called the office to rat her out because her mother had asked her to do something. She 
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continued to scream and curse, saying I am going to be fired if she is no longer allowed to see 
her mother. She said that I needed to watch out and I am going to pay for that. Amy and Bill 
had opened Dumy's mail, including letters from Merrill Lynch, which I believe they took 
pictures of. 

12. TIle sihIation got worse when Amy started to scream at Dinny, telling Dinny that Janie 
[Mulrain] is ~ liar, that Janie had taken more than S500,OOO and that Dinny doesn't remember, 
that we (the caregivers) are overdosing her with medicine and not feeding her right. At this point 
in Amy's rant, I stood by Dinny and asked Dinny if she was okay. Dinny was clearly upset, but 
she said, "I'm okay, I love you." Bill wos trying to cahn Amy down, but she persisted. Bill told 
her, «You know Laura is doing her job." Amy replied, lODo not defend her or I will leave youP' 
TIle entire scene was very unpleasant and a toxic environment for Dinny. 

13. TI,e situation lasted until Raquel called the house. Amy and Bill lied on the phone, 
saying they only did what Dinny had asked. \Vhcn this happened, Amy got very close to me, 
insulting me, so I decided not to speak to her in hopes that she would calm down. Bill kept 
tryjng to calm her down, but was unsuccessful. 

14. \Vhen Amy went to use the restroolll, she closed the door of the outer room, which also 
contained my purse. I retrieved my purse while she used the restroom as I was ali·aid she would 
go through my things to get my infonnation. She then approached me angrily and said, "I would 
never touch your purse!" 

15. 1he whole evening was tense except when Bitt started talking about the dogs. That was 
the only pleasant moment in the entire evening. Amy continued to insult and threaten me and I 
did not respond to any of it. The only time I responded was when she clearly threatened me and 
I said to her, "I treated you with respect. Ple.:'lse do 1l0tmake threats at me." 

16. I believe their visits should be chaperoned by someone and the visits should be shortened. 
Dinny was clearly distressed after their visit and very confused throughout the entire evening. 

I declare under penalty ofpcrjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed ul/.4lSe Fo~, California, this 12 day o[September, 2018. 

By: ~ ~ LAURA;,'O 

1 
DECLARATION OF LAURA GERMANO 
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3 

4 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR 'l'HE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

5 In the Matter ofthe Case No: PR16-00128 

6 JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST Dept, No,: 15 [PRJ 

7~----------------------------~ 

8 DECLARATION OF SARAH MAGANA 

9 I, SARAH MAGANA, hereby declare as follows: 

10 I. I am a resident of California, 

II 2, I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth below, and if called as a witness, could 

12 and would testify competently to the following facts, 

13 3, I am employed by Family Home Care, Inc, and am assigned to Dinny G, Frasier 

14 ("Dinny"), a party in the above-captioned matter, as a Home Care Aide, I have been working 

15 with Dinny for approximately 2 yell'S, 

16 4, My scheduled hours with Dinny were once regular but now vary due to my school 

17 schedule, I now generally cover shifts from 7 AM to 7PM or 7PM to 7 AM on weekends and on 

18 an as-needed basis, 

19 5, I love working with Dinny because she is a wonderful lady, I take my job of caring for 

20 Dinny very seriously, but her children oftentimes make the job very difficult. 

21 6, On September 16,2018, I was on Dinny's shift from 7AM-7PM, I knew that Dinny's 

22 daughter and her husband, Amy Frasier Wilson and Bill Wilson, were scheduled to visit from 

23 IPM-5PM, and that visit supervisor Allyn Anderson would be there to supervise the visit. Allyn 

24 arrived a little before I PM, Amy and Bill showed up late, at approximately 2PM, 

25 7, I had never met Amy or Bill in person before, but I had heard plenty of stories fi'om other 

26 caregivers about Amy's terrorizing behavior toward the caregivers, I was very worried about 

27 how the visit would go, and my agency instructed me to call 911 ifI felt that Dinny's and my 

28 safety were threatened, 
1 

DECLARA'l'ION OF SARAH MAGANA 
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I 8. Amy was menacing and threatening as soon as she walked into the house. This was the 

2 first time I had met Amy or Bill, but Amy inm1ediately started making accusations that I had 

3 dropped Dinny on her head in the past, which I denied because it was not true. Amy was in my 

4 face screaming and pointing her fingers in my face and actually made contact with my face. I 

5 told Amy that I would call 911 if she didn't stop, and because she continued her enatic behavior, 

6 I had no choice but to dial 911. While I was on the phone with the police, Bill dragged Amy out 

7 of the house saying that she would be arrested if they did not leave immediately. After Amy and 

8 Bill left, the police anived, and I gave them my statement of the incident that had just OCCUlTed. 

9 9. I was scared for the safety of myself and DiImy during this incident and am scared 0 

10 what might happen in future visits. DiIlllY was scared and wonied during the entire incident, and 

II I was wonied about the stress that it caused her. 

12 10. I have met Dinny's other daughter, Nori Frasier, several times in the past. Although Nod 

13 has never physically assaulted me, she presents other difficulties as I try to do my job of taking 

14 care of Dhmy. Nori often tells Dinny to fire her care staff agency because "they are not doing 

15 their job properly" and that the agency is keeping Dinny from seeing her children. When Nori 

16 visits, I have to watch everything she does, as she call1lot be trusted. For example, I caught her 

17 taking pictures of caregiver notes in the jonrnal, which documents caregiver notes of everything 

18 that goes on during their shifts with DillllY and which is confidential. Nori has even written 

19 notes in the journal about what time a caregiver atl'ived for her shift, even though the journal is 

20 strictly for caregivers to write in. I have also callght N ori surreptitiously taking pictures 0 

21 Dinny's calendar on her iPad, which contains her entire schedule, such as appointments with her 

22 attorney, doctors, and other confidential infonnation. 

23 I declare under penalty of peljUly under the laws ofthe State of Nevada that the 

24 foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed in San Juan Capistrano, California, this 16th day of Sept em bel', 2018. 25 

26 

27 

28 
BY~-A--RA---\~,\-lLM~A~G~AN~A-=~'---

2 
DECLARATION OF SARAH MAGANA 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE S'l'ATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

5 In the Matter of the Case No: PR16·00128 

6 JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST Dept. No.: 15 [PR] 

7~--------------------------------~ 

8 DECLARATION OF DR. MICHAEL HAGA 

9 I, DR. MICHAEL HAGA, hereby declare as follows: 

10 I. I am a resident of California . 

. 11 2. r have personal 1o1Owledge of the facts set f0l1h below, and if called as a witness, could 

12 and would testifY competently to the following facts. 

I3 3. I am the primary care physician of Dinny Frasier ("Dinny"), a party in the above· 

1 4 captioned matter. I am licensed to practice medicine in the state of CalifOl1lia. 

15 4. I am not related by blood or marriage to Dinny Frasier. 

16 5. As Dinny's primary care physician who visits her at her home, it is my opinion that she 

17 should have all visits with her children be supervised by a neutral party. 

18 6. DimlY has been having legal issues with her trust and with her children, and based on 

19 credible and repeated reports from her caregivers some of the children bring up these legal 

20 issues, ask DitlllY about the money, who will get it, and are usittg cell phones to record her 

21 answers. 

22 7. These conversations are very stressful for Dinny, and are not appropriate. It is important 

23 that her interactions with her children are as stress free as possible. 

24 8. It is my strong opinion that her visits be supervised witb set hours as she does fatigue 

25 easily and needs to be on a schedule that she can plan on with agreed upon hours. 

26 I declare under penalty of perjury under the Jaws of the State of Nevada that the 

27 foregoing is true and correct. 

28 II 
1 

DECLARATION OF DR. MICHAEL HAGA 
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1 Executed in San Clemente, California, this Jl ~:y of September, 2018. 

2 

Dy ~ 4fJPtJ> 3 

.4 DR. MICHAEL HAGA 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE STA'I'E OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

5 In the Matter of the . 

6 JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST 

7 

Case No: PR16-00128 

Dept. No.: 15 [PRJ 

8 DECLARATION OF ARACELI "SALLY" DALTON 

9 I, ARACEL1 "SALLY" DALTON, hereby declare as follows: 

10 1. I am a resident of California. 

11 2. I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth below, and if called as a witness, could 

12 and would testify competently to the following facts. 

13 3. I am employed by Family Home Care, Inc. and am assigned to Dinny G. Frasier 

14 ("Dinny"), a party in the above-captioned matter, as a Home Care Aide. 

15 4. My scheduled hours with Dinny are Monday,Wednesday and Thursday from 7PM to 

16 7AM and occasional Sunday's 9:30AM·7PM, including holidays. 

17 5. On or about August 12,2018, I was present when Dimly's daughter and son-in-law, Amy 

18 and Bill Wilson ("Amy and Bill"), visited Dinny, a!'living around 1:45 PM. When they arrived, 

19 Bill greeted me, but Amy walked passed me and immediately started asking Dinny questions like 

20 "Did you eat'? What did you have for breakfast?" DimlY could not recall and responded, "I don't 

21 know, I don't remember if I ate." I reminded Dinny that she had gotten up late and had brunch, 

22 then listed what she had eaten. DimlY then said she remembered that I had given her the food for 

23 lunch. Bill said not to worry and that he would buy burgers for everyone and they would eat 

24 with her. 

25 6. Amy then kept asking Dinny if she had gone to the Pageant of the Masters, what did she 

26 see there, and to tell Amy about it. Dinny said she did not remember if she had gone. Amy then 

27 made accusations that DimlY was not taken to tlte Pageant and that the caregivers were lying 

28 about taking her and that they lie all the time. I approached Dinny and reminded hel that 

DECLARA'I'ION OF ARACEL! "SALLY" DALTON 
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1 caregiver Angelica had gone with her to Laguna Beach to see the show. Amy denied what I said 

2 and accused me oflying, demanding to see tickets as proof. I told her that Dinny did go and that 

3 she arrived home late because I was waiting outside for her at 9:30 PM. Amy continued to 

4 accuse me of lying and demanding to see the tickets. I told her I did not have them. Amy 

5 demanded that I check the log book where we keep all of our caregivers notes and Dinny's 

6 information and I denied her request, informing her that she is not allowed to check the book as 

7 it belongs to the caregivers/agency. I immediately closed the book so she could not read it. She 

8 cursed at me and I reiterated that she was not allowed to have it, that she needed to respect me, 

9 and not to use foul language. Bill intervened on my behalf and told Amy to not use foul 

10 language, that I was taking good care of Dinny, and have been working for Dinny for a long 

11 time. Amy continued to use bad words over and over while Bill kept telling her to stop. DimlY 

12 looked very worried and sad. She kept looking at me and then at Amy and told her to stop. I 

13 told Amy to call Dinny's power of attorney, Janie Mulrain, or the agency's office. Amy stated 

14 she did not like the power of attorney and accused Ms. Mulrain of stealing Amy's home, lying to 

15 everyone, and controlling Dinny's money. Amy said some of the caregivers had accused her and 

16 her sister Nori Frasier ("Nori") of stealing Dinny's jewehy. 

17 7. Amy then said I could not work for Dinny and demanded I leave. I refused and said that 

18 I do not work for her (Amy), I work for the agency and for Dinny. I said I was staying, that I 

19 have worked with Dinny for two (2) years, this is my job, and that Dinny needs me. Amy 

20 demanded again that I leave, saying that Dinny was her mother, this was her mother's house, and 

21 Amy got to decide who stays. Bill intervened again, saying I was right and Dinny needed me. 

22 Amy responded that she could take care of Dinny and she and Bill could stay with her. Amy 

23 came back to me and again told me to leave. I told her to calm down and if she did not, I would 

24 call the sheriff and tell them about her bad behavior, her insults, her lack of manners, and her 

25 disrespecting me in front of her mother. I told her she needed to leave, not me, and that I was 

26 staying. Bill told her she needed to calm down, but Amy kept moving around the house 

27 nervously. 

28 
2 
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1 8. Amy continued to make accusations about the caregivers, the agency, saying that we are 

2 not taking good care of Dinny. She said she had taken better care ofDinny and under our care 

3 Dinny was not doing well. She said caregivers Stella and Karen had told the agency Dinny 

4 needed to go to the dentist and that agency did not listen and does not do anything for Dinny. 

5 She told me two caregivers had told her bad things about me. I told her, if I am a bad person, 

6 why am I here, but they are not? If they are such good people, why have they not been assigned 

7 to Dinny? I am here to do my job and I do not concern myself with the accusations of other 

8 caregivers. Amy finally relented and said I could stay, but that I should remember that she is 

9 Dinny's daughter and this was Dinny's house. I told her she needed to change her attitude and to 

10 stop accusing the caregivers of wrongdoing. 

11 9. At about 4 PM, Bill went to buy burgers for Dinny, Amy, and himself. He offered to buy 

12 one for me, but I declined. At about 5 PM, Amy and Bill returned with the burgers. Amy was 

13 friendlier. She cried in front of Din ny, saying no one likes her (Amy), that she loves Dinny, that 

14 she took good care of her, and wished that evelything would go back to the way it was before. 

15 Dinny told her to stop crying and did not know what else to do. Amy's crying made her nervous. 

16 I tried to make Dinny comfOilable and she told me she loved me and thanlced me. 

17 10. At approximately 6:30 PM they left. Bill was nice to me the whole time. 

18 11. My handwritten notes dated August 12, 2018 are attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

19 12. On or about Wednesday, September 5, 2018, Dinny's daughter Nori Frasier ("Nod") 

20 announced that she was going to take over Dinny's care. Nori also stated that there would be no 

21 more supervised visits .. 

22 13. I also was informed by caregiver Martha that at the last weekend visit, Amy stated she 

23 would be taking over Dinny's care and moving in. 

24 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the 

25 foregoing is true and correct. 

26 Executed in l A ';.& 10 (L~ s ;- , California, this l:L. day of September, 

27 2018. 

28 
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Aug. 16.2018 IO:33AM No. 1927 P. 1 
A A Fanvuy Il~Car~ Irw. 
" NARRATIVE NOTES ARE REQUIRED FOR EVERY SHIFT 

"'PLEASE DO NOT SKIP LINES, USE FRONT & BACK, SIGN AFTER EACH ENTRY'" 

" !'Yr. ~ 11'\')"1[,'1 
pliant Name: T \\1 \-.JlI 

) 

@2<l03 Family Home Ca,a, Ino. All Righls Reoehled. V.r. January 2015 
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Aug, 16,2018 10:34AM No, 1927 p, 2 
fA. A F~ 1f01'J1/e.' CaY~ Inc. 
" NARRATIVE NOTES ARE REQUIRED FOR EVERY SHIFT 

"'PLEASE DO NOT SKIP LINES, USE FRONT & BACK, SIGN AFTER EACH ENTRY'" 

Client Name: 

DATE TIME NARRATIVE (Include Activities, Medication Observation, Client Updates, Visitors, etc,) 

@2003 Family Home Care, Inc. All Rights Reserved. Ver. January 2015 
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Aug. 16.2018 10:34AM u No. 1927 P. 3 III A. rfMl14Ajl ntnJ1/l!/ C(l{Al"l?1 If1.O. 
" NARRATIVE NOTES ARE REQUIRED FOR EVERY SHIFT 

'''PLEASE DO NOT SKIP LINES, USE FRONT & BACK, SIGN AFTER EACH ENTRY'" 

"jc:llent Name: 

DATE TIME NARRATIVE (Include Activities, Medicutioh Observation, Client Updates, Visitors, etc.) 

@2003 Family Home Carel Ino. An Rights Reserved. VaL January 2015 
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t'f r atnM()I n fJ'nve/ ti'l/Yf!1 I IU}: 

, NARRATIVE NOTES ARE REQUIRED FOR EVERY SHIFT 
"'PLEASE DO NOT SKIP LINES, USE FRONT & BACK, SIGN AFTER EACH ENTRY'" 

GllentName: 

DATE TIME NARRATIVE (Include Activities, Medlc'Ition Observation, Client Updates, Visitors, etc.) 

w'k '( 

" 

lID 2003 family Home Care, Inc. All Rights Reserved. Ve[. January 2015 
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..q T'~ ~ 01n/f!/ (JtIY'~ Ine: 

, NARRATIVE NOTES ARE REQUIRED FOR EVERY SHIFT 
···PLEASE DO NOT SKIP LINES, USE FRONT & BACK, SIGN AFTER EACH ENTRY'" 

" jClientName: 

DATE TIME (Include Activities, Medication Observation, Client Updates, Visitors, etc.) 

@2003 Family Home Care, Ina. A1! Rights Resetved, Vet. JanUBry 2015 
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Aug. 16.2018 10: 36AM :u C No. 1927 P. 6 lib. ~ r tiUWI./tjI l r; om,.e., &U"tY, I no. 

V NARRATIVE NOTES ARE REQUIRED FOR EVERY SHIFT 
'''PLEASE DO NOT SKIP LINES, USE FRONT & BACK, SIGN AFTER EACH ENTRY'" 

Client Name: 

DATE TIME NARRATIVE (Include ActiVities, Medication Observation, CIi$nt Updates, Visitors, etc.) 

@2003 Family Home Care, Inc. All fllghtG ReGelved. Ver. January 2015 
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II';. ~ ratnM.j' n O'm& t?l/r~ II1A:% 
• NARRATIVE NOTES ARE REQUIRED FOR EVERY SHIFT 

'''PLEASE DO NOT SKIP LINES, USE FRONT & BACK, SIGN AFTER EACH ENTRY··· 

")::lient Name: 

DATE TIME NARRATIVE (Include Activities, Medication Observation, Client Updates, Visitors, etc.) 

) 

© 2003 FamHy Home Car •• Inc. All R~hl' ReseIVed. VeF. JQhUalY 2015 
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Aug. 16.2018 10: 14AM 

1 

2 

3 

4 

No. 1926 P. 3 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF 'lIRE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

5 In the Matter of the Case No: PR16·00128 

6 JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST Dept. No.: 15 [PRJ 

7~--------~--------------------~ 

8 DECLARATION OF JONATHAN IRISH 

9 I, JONATHAN IRISH, hereby declare as follows: 

10 1. I am a resident of California. 

11 2. I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth below, and if called as a witness, could 

12 and would testify competently to the following faots. 

13 3. I am the Vice President of Operations of Family Home Care, Inc. and I manage the 

14 caregivers assigned to Dinlly G. Frasier ('ninny"), a party in the above-captioned matter. 

15 4. On 01' about August 6, 2018, I spoke to Bill WilSon ("Bill"), Dinny's son-in-law, via 

16 telephone. D.udng the call I asked Bill ifhe 01' Amy, Dinny's daughter nndBill's wife, have ever 

17 video or audio taped any of my employees. Bill did 1I0t seem to understand the question so I 

18 reiterated it. While I do understand that visits with Dinny may include pictures or recordings 

19 with her, I clearly asked him to 1I0t record any of my employees via audio or video. Bill's 

20 response was that he nlld Amy do take pictures and/or make recordings of Dinny, but they are 

21 not purposely directing those pictures and/or recordings at the employees of my agenvy. 

22 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the 

23 foregoing is true and correct. .:t 
24 Executed in LaRCL fofQ3\ , California, this ((b day of August, 2018. 

25 

26 

27 

28 
1 

DEOLARA'l'ION OF JONATHAN IRISH 
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3975 
F. McClure Wallace, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10264 
Patrick R. Millsap, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 12043 
Wallace & Millsap LLC 
510 W Plumb Ln., Suite A 
Reno, Nevada 89509 
mcclure@wallacemillsap.com 
patrick@wallacemillsap.com 
(775) 683-9599 
Local Counsel for Mrs. Dinny Frasier 
 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 
 
In the Matter of the 
 
JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST 
 

   Case No: PR16-00128 
 
   Dept. No.: 15 [PR] 

 
STATEMENT OF PROPOSED INVESTIGATORS 

PURSUANT TO COURT ORDER 

On August 16, 2018, this Court ordered the undersigned Counsel to 

"submit…the names of two proposed investigators to travel to California for purposes 

of interviewing and assessing Mrs. Frasier's circumstances and reporting to this 

Court."  See August 16, 2018 Court Order, ¶ 11.  The Court further contemplated the 

proposed investigator's role would be akin to a guardianship investigator and 

guardian ad litem.  Id.  In that respect, the undersigned Counsel offers the following 

investigators with a background in guardianship issues for the Court's consideration: 
 

1. Kaycee Zusman 
(775) 841-4119 
 

2. Bonni Walker 
(775) 331-1266 
 

Counsel will address the qualifications of each proposed investigator, the role 

of the investigator, the scope of the investigation, the propriety of selecting a single 

F I L E D
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PR16-00128

2018-09-28 03:14:39 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6903728 : yviloria

6 AA 1264



 

Page 2 of 3 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 
 
 

investigator from the names proposed, and compensation of the investigator at the 

hearing on this matter consistent with ¶ 11 of the Court's August 16, 2018 Order. 

Affirmation 

The undersigned affirms this Document does not contain the social security 

number of any person. 

DATED this 28th day of September, 2018. 

By:  /s/    Patrick R. Millsap                        . 
F. McClure Wallace, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10264 
Patrick R. Millsap, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 12043 
Wallace & Millsap LLC 
510 W Plumb Ln., Suite A 
Reno, Nevada 89509 
mcclure@wallacemillsap.com 
patrick@wallacemillsap.com 
(775) 683-9599 
Local Counsel for Mrs. Dinny Frasier 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify I am an employee of Wallace & Millsap LLC, 

510 W. Plumb Lane, Suite A, Reno, NV 89509, and that on the 28th day of September, 

2018, I served the foregoing document via the Second Judicial District Court’s 

electronic filing system upon Premier Trust through its Counsel of Record – G. David 

Robertson, Esq.  I further certify I deposited a true copy of the foregoing with the U.S. 

Postal Service in Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, addressed to: 

 
Nori Frasier 
4372 Pacifica Way, Unit 3 
Oceanside, California 92056 
 
Amy Frasier Wilson 
10 Via Sonrisa 
Mission Viejo, California 92692 
 
Bradley L. Frasier, MD 
3609 Vista Way 
Oceanside, CA 92056 

 DATED this 28th day of September, 2018 

  
      By:   /s/    Chris Miller                               . 
       An Employee of Wallace & Millsap 
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CODE: 3373 
G. DAVID ROBERTSON, ESQ. (NV Bar 1001) 
RICHARD D. WILLIAMSON, ESQ. (NV Bar 9932) 
JONATHAN J. TEW, ESQ. (NV Bar 11874) 
Robertson, Johnson, Miller & Williamson 
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 600 
Reno, Nevada 89501 
Telephone No.: (775) 329-5600 
Facsimile No.: (775) 348-8300 
Attorneys for Petitioner, Premier Trust, Inc. 

 

 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA 

 
 
In the Matter of the 
 
JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST 
 

Case No. PR16-00128 
 
Dept. No. 15 [PR] 

 
 
 

PREMIER TRUST’S PROPOSED INVESTIGATORS PURSUANT TO  
COURT’S AUGUST 16, 2018 ORDER 

 
 

Petitioner, Premier Trust, Inc., by and through its counsel, Robertson, Johnson, Miller & 

Williamson, hereby submits two proposed investigators pursuant to this Court’s August 16, 2018 

Order: 

I. DR. BRIAN LEANY 

Premier Trust’s first proposed individual to travel to California for purposes of 

interviewing and assessing Mrs. Frasier’s circumstances and reporting to the Court is Dr. Brian 

Leany (“Dr. Leany”).  Attached hereto as “Exhibit 1” is Dr. Leany’s Curriculum Vitae.  Dr. 

Leany is a licensed clinical psychologist in both Nevada and California and has an extensive 

background in conducting mental health evaluations, clinical interviews as to decision making, 

testamentary intent, and financial competency.  Dr. Leany is available and willing to travel to 

California to conduct an interview of Mrs. Frasier upon this Court’s direction.   

Dr. Leany’s fee is $350.00 per hour (excluding travel costs) and he requires a retainer of 

$3,500. A cost-breakdown of his services is as follows: 
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Item  Time Cost 

Psychological History and 

Clinical Interview  

 

  

1.5 

 

$525 

Personality Inventory 

 

 1.5 $525 

Clinical Specific Inventory 

(i.e. depression, anxiety, 

substance abuse, etc.) 

 

  

 

.5 

 

 

$175 

IQ Test 

 

 1.5 $525 

Memory and Mental Status 

 

 1.5 $525 

Executive Functioning 

 

 .5 $175 

Research and Report 

Writing 

 

  

6 

 

$2,100 

Record Review (subject to 

change based on discovery, 

etc.; charged at 90 pages per 

hour) 

 

  

 

 

.5 

 

 

 

$175 

Total Cost (excluding 

travel and testimony) 

  

13.5 

 

$4,725 

    

    

 As can be seen from the attached CV, Dr. Leany is a highly capable and qualified 

individual to take on the investigation required by the Court. 

II. MR. DUSTIN GRATE 

Premier Trust’s second proposed individual to travel to California for purposes of 

interviewing and assessing Mrs. Frasier’s circumstances and reporting to the Court is Mr. Dustin 

Grate (“Mr. Grate”).  Attached hereto as “Exhibit 2” is Mr. Grate’s curriculum vitae. Mr. Grate 

is a licensed private investigator in Nevada and California.  He has an extensive background in 

police investigations and surveillance of domestic abuse situations. Additionally, he has worked 

on numerous cases involving abuse of the elderly and has conducted many home studies on adult 

placement. Moreover, Mr. Grate has conducted investigations on elder abuse inside of nursing 

home settings.  Mr. Grate is available and willing to travel to California to conduct an interview 

of Mrs. Frasier upon this Court’s direction.   
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Mr. Grate’s fees are as follows: $90 per hour (excluding travel costs). Mr. Grate 

estimates his total fees for this assignment, including travel, investigation time and preparing a 

report for the Court, at approximately $2,300.  Mr. Grate does not require a retainer before 

commencing work.  As can be seen from the attached CV, Mr. Grate is a highly capable and 

qualified individual to take on the investigation required by the Court.   

Both of these individuals have been previously qualified as expert witnesses in their 

respective fields by the Second Judicial District Court.  Additionally, they have not previously 

worked with either Premier Trust or the law firm of Robertson, Johnson, Miller and Williamson. 

Affirmation 

Pursuant to NRS § 239B.030, the undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding 

document does not contain the social security number of any person. 

Dated this 28th day of September, 2018. 

ROBERTSON, JOHNSON,  
MILLER & WILLIAMSON  
 
 
By:  /s/ G. David Robertson   
 G. David Robertson, Esq. 
 Richard D. Williamson, Esq. 
 Jonathan J. Tew, Esq. 
 Attorneys for Dinny G. Frasier and 
 Premier Trust, Inc. 

 

6 AA 1269



 

 

PROPOSED INVESTIGATORS PURSUANT TO COURT’S AUGUST 16, 2018 ORDER 

PAGE 4 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of Robertson, Johnson, 

Miller & Williamson, 50 West Liberty Street, Suite 600, Reno, Nevada 89501, and that on the 

28th day of September, 2018, I electronically filed the foregoing PROPOSED 

INVESTIGATORS PURSUANT TO COURT’S AUGUST 16, 2018 ORDER with the Clerk 

of the Court by using the electronic filing system which will send a notice of electronic filing to 

the following: 

Barnet Resnick, Esq. [pro hac vice] 
F. Wallace McClure, Esq. 
Patrick R. Millsap, Esq. 
c/o  Wallace & Millsap, LLC 
510 W. Plumb Lane, Suite A 
Reno, NV  89509 
Attorneys for Dinny Frasier 

Michael A. Rosenauer, Esq. 
510 West Plumb Lane, Suite A 
Reno, NV  89509 
Attorney for Janie L. Mulrain Attorney-in-Fact 
for Mrs. Dinny Frasier 

 
I further certify that on the 28th day of September, 2018, I caused to be served by U.S. 

Mail a true and correct copy of the foregoing PROPOSED INVESTIGATORS PURSUANT 

TO COURT’S AUGUST 16, 2018 ORDER addressed to the following: 

Nori Frasier 
4372 Pacifica Way, Unit 3 
Oceanside, CA  92056 

Amy Frasier Wilson 
10 Via Sonrisa 
Mission Viejo, CA   92692 
 

Bradley L. Frasier, M.D. 
3609 Vista Way 
Oceanside, CA 92056 

 

 

/s/ Teresa W. Stovak 

An Employee of Robertson, Johnson, Miller & Williamson 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

Ex. No. Description Pages 

1 Curriculum Vitae of Dr. Brian Leany 7 

2 Curriculum Vitae of Mr. Dustin Grate 4 
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Curriculum Vitae 
 

Brian Douglas Leany, Ph.D. 

NV License: PY0637 

CA License: PSY24361 
505 South Arlington Suite 102 

Reno, NV 89509 

(775) 225-2525 Email: leanyb@gmail.com 

 
Education: 

 

2010 Doctor of Philosophy 

University of Nevada Las Vegas 

Clinical Psychology (APA Accredited) 

University of Nevada, Las Vegas 

Advisor: Daniel Allen, Ph.D., Professor 

 
Personal Statement and Philosophy: 

 

I provide a variety of psychological services with specialization in forensic and 

neuropsychological assessment as well as providing supporting expert testimony. I have 

completed over 600 evaluations for the courts, ranging from Family Court to Federal 

District Court. I am fluent in Spanish and have published works related to assessment of 

non-dominant populations, including Hispanic clients and I have co-edited books under 

the topic of cultural considerations for psychological assessment of Asian Americans and 

African Americans. 

 

My practice is founded on a model of evidence-based evaluation and treatment. I start 

from a thorough psychodiagnostic evaluation, as the foundation of good treatment is an 

accurate diagnosis, and assessments are custom tailored to answer the referral question as 

well as meet statutory requirements, with an ultimate goal of best meeting the needs of 

the client’s evaluative objective and/or treatment. I use the most current assessment 

measures so long as they are supported by solid scientific support.  

 

 
Relevant Clinical Experience inclusive of Private Practice 

 

October 2011 to Present 

Private Practice 

 

Primary Responsibilities Include: Forensic and Neuropsychological Assessment and the 

provision of psychotherapeutic services for individuals, families and couples ages 

ranging from 3 years old and up. These services include clinical interviews, treatment and 

a wide range of psychological assessments in a community based setting including: 

forensic evaluations of capacity (e.g. testamentary, medical decision making, parental), 

competency and risk assessments as well as child custody evaluations; immigration 

evaluations, neuropsychological evaluations; substance abuse. In addition to clinical 

6 AA 1273



 

 

work, this job entails community outreach, and program development related to the 

available services. 

 

 

January 2013 to August 2017 

Lake’s Crossing Center 
 
Primary Responsibilities Include: Forensic Psychological evaluations of mental illness 

related to competency, risk and criminal responsibility as well as related treatment for 

competency and serious mental illness. Treatment and evaluation are provided within a 

multi-disciplinary setting at the State of Nevada’s Forensic Hospital, Lake’s Crossing 

Center. Expert testimony is provided, when requested to support the evaluations 

described above.November 2010 to November 2012 Psychologist 

California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (CDCR): High Desert State 

Prison 

 

Primary Responsibilities Include:  

Subject Matter Expert and Faculty Mentor for Suicide Risk Evaluation and Assessment 

including the evaluation and acquisition of relevant materials related to statewide and 

institutional goals, as well as federally mandated court guidelines for remediation 

including: Psychodiagnostic placement, assessment of feigning of symptoms 

(malingering), mental health evaluations for Rules Violation Reports, and state mandated 

assessments for Majorly Disordered Offender evaluation, Interferon pre-placement 

screening and gender reassignment screening. Additionally, this job required new 

employee training, as well as remedial training related to clinical and crisis based 

assessment for employees in need of retraining to address professional growth needs. 

 

Additional duties included: Clinical Case Management; the coordination for the provision 

of mental health services among mental health treatment providers (eg. Psychiatry, Social 

Workers, Therapists, Nursing) and Custodial staff who were involved in acute and 

chronic provision of psychotherapeutic, psychodiagnostic and crisis services for inmates 

in the CDCR system. 

 

 

July 2010- November 2010 Postdoctoral Scholar/Psychologist 

University of Nevada Reno: Victims of Crime Treatment Center 

 

Primary Responsibilities Included: The provision of psychotherapeutic services to child 

and adult victims of childhood physical abuse. This required coordination and 

communication with a multitude of governmental and private agencies, whom have 

contact with individuals who have been childhood victims of abuse. Additional 

responsibilities included the coordination and supervision of undergraduate research 

assistants for community based research and academic development. 

Primary Supervisor: William O’Donohue, Ph.D.  

6 AA 1274



 

 

 

2009-2010 Clinical Psychology Intern 

Kaiser Permanente, Department of Mental Health 

 

Primary responsibilities included providing psychological services for: acute crisis 

intervention, therapy, assessment and community based educational services. This was an 

interdisciplinary setting that included, physicians, nurses and other mental health 

workers, in order to provided coordinated treatment for mental health issues, with a 

diverse population, located within a rural agricultural community. 

Primary Supervisor: Steven Nichols, Ph.D. 

 

2008-2009 Clinical Psychology Practicum Trainee 

University of Puerto Rico, Medical School, Department of Neurology, Pediatric Unit 

 

Primary responsibilities included: providing psychological assessment for pediatric 

clients with neurological disorders (predominantly epilepsy), as well as educational 

assessment for pervasive developmental disorders. Neuropsychological assessments for 

adults were also conducted for clients with either a confirmed or preliminary diagnose of 

Multiple Sclerosis. Training in all aspects of assessment including test administration, 

interpretation, and integrated report writing were emphasized. Training also included 

interdisciplinary meetings for treatment planning for all patients served by the hospital’s 

department of neurology. Populations included predominantly Spanish speaking children 

and adults of the metropolitan area of San Juan, PR as well as outlying areas. 

Primary Supervisor: Liza San Miguel Montes, Psy.D. 

 

 

Selected Publications: 

 
Refereed Articles: 

 

1.  Allen D.N., Leany B.D., Thaler N.S., Cross C, Sutton GP, Mayfield J. (2010). 

Memory and Attention Profiles in Pediatric Traumatic Brain Injury. Archives of Clinical 

Nueropsychology. 

 

2. Thomas, J.D., Leany, B.D., & Riley, E.P. (2003). Differential vulnerability to motor 

deficits in second replicate HAS and LAS following neonatal alcohol exposure. 

Pharmacology, Biochemistry and Behavior, 75 (1), 17-24. 

 

Edited Books: 

 

2. Benuto, L.B., Leany, B.D. & Thaler, N. (Eds.)(2014). Guide to Psychological 

Assessment with Asian. New York, NY: Springer. 
 
3. Benuto, L.B., Leany, B.D. & Thaler, N. (Eds.)(2015). Guide to Psychological 

Assessment with African Americans. New York, NY: Springer. 
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Book Sections: 

1. Leany, B.D. & Benuto, L. T. (in press). Cultural Considerations in the Assessment of 

Sexually Violent Predators. In Sexually Violent Predators Clinical Science 

Handbook. Springer International Publishing. 

 

2. Casas, J. & Leany, B. D. (in press). Tools for restoring legal competency with 

Latinos. In Toolkit for Counseling Spanish-Speaking Clients. Springer International 

Publishing. 

 

3. Leany, B. D. (2016). Seriously Mentally Ill and Integrated Care Among Hispanic 

Populations. In Enhancing Behavioral Health in Latino Populations (pp. 297-309). 

Springer International Publishing. 

 

4. Benuto, L. T., Wainwright, K. A., & Leany, B. D. (2014). Assessment of Dementia: 

Screening for Cognitive Decline with Asian Clients. In Guide to Psychological 

Assessment with Asians (pp. 291-304). Springer New York. 

 

5. Leany, B. D., Benuto, L. T., & Thaler, N. S. (2014). Neuropsychological Assessment 

with Asian American Clients. In Guide to Psychological Assessment with Asians (pp. 

427-441). Springer New York. 

 

6. Benuto, L. T., Leany, B. D., Thaler, N. S., & Yonesawa, A. (2014). Assessing Risk, 

Recidivism, and Dangerousness in Asians. In Guide to Psychological Assessment 

with Asians (pp. 443-451). Springer New York. 

 

7. Leany, B. D., & Benuto, L. T. (2014). Forensic Assessment with the Asian American 

Client. In Guide to Psychological Assessment with Asians (pp. 453-464). Springer 

New York. 

 

8. Benuto, L. T., Leany, B. D., & Lee, A. (2015). Assessing Effort and Malingering 

with the African American Client. In Guide to Psychological Assessment with 

African Americans (pp. 79-85). Springer New York. 

 

9. Benuto, L. T., Soto, C. G., & Leany, B. D. (2015). Screening for Cognitive Decline 

and Assessment of Dementia with African Americans. In Guide to Psychological 

Assessment with African Americans (pp. 237-246). Springer New York. 

 

10. Leany, B. D., Benuto, L. T., & Morra, L. F. (2015). Neuropsychological Assessment 

with African American Clients. In Guide to Psychological Assessment with African 

Americans (pp. 289-304). Springer New York. 

 

11. Benuto, L. T., Leany, B. D., & Garrick, J. (2015). Forensic Assessment with the 

African American Client. In Guide to Psychological Assessment with African 

Americans (pp. 313-329). Springer New York. 
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12. Bennett, N. M., Leany, B. D., & Benuto, L. T. (2015). Assessing Risk and 

Recidivism in African Americans. In Guide to Psychological Assessment with African 

Americans (pp. 305-311). Springer New York. 

 

13. Leany, B., Benuto, L. and  Thaler, N. (2013). Neuropsychological Assessment with 

Hispanic Clients. In L. Benuto (Ed.), Handbook of Psychological Assessment. New 

York, NY: Springer. 

 

14. Cirlugea, O., Benuto, L., & Leany, B.  (2013). Assessing Risk, Recidivism, and 

Dangerousness in Hispanics . In L. Benuto (Eds.) Guide to Psychological Assessment 

with Hispanics. New York, NY: Springer. 

 

15. Benuto, L., Leany, B. and Cirguela, A. (2013). Forensic Assessment with the 

Hispanic Client. In L. Benuto (Ed.), Handbook of Psychological Assessment. New 

York, NY: Springer. 

16. Benuto, L. and Leany, B. (2013). Assessment of Dementia in the Hispanic Client: A 

Neuropsychological Perspective Assessment of the Hispanic Client in the Forensic 

Setting. In L. Benuto (Ed.), Handbook of Psychological Assessment. New York, NY: 

Springer. 

17. Benuto, L., & Leany, B. (2013). Assessing Effort & Malingering with the Hispanic 

Client . In L. Benuto (Eds.) Guide to Psychological Assessment with Hispanics. New 

York, NY: Springer. 

18. Leany, B. (2013). Brain Development and Health Implications in Adolescents. In W. 

T. O'Donohue, L. Benuto and L. Woodward Tolle (Eds.) Handbook of Adolescent 

Health Psychology. New York, NY: Springer. 

19. Benuto, L. and Leany, B. (2011). Reforms for Women and Minorities. In N. 

Cummings & W. O’Donohue (Eds.), 21st Century Behavioral Healthcare Reforms: 

The Promise of Integrated Healthcare. New York, NY: Routledge. 

20. Leany, B, Allen DN, Villamar AJ, Donohue BC (2008). Fetal alcohol syndrome. In 

GL Fisher and NA Roget (Eds.), Encyclopedia of Substance Abuse Prevention, 

Treatment, and Recovery. SAGE Publications: Thousand Oaks, CA. 

21. Allen, D.N., Strauss, G.P., Leany, B.D. & Donohue, B. (2007). Neuropsychological 

Assessment of Individuals with Substance Use Disorders. In The Neuropsychology 

Handbook Third Edition. A. M. Horton, Jr. & D. Wedding. Springer Publishing: New 

York, 709-732. 

Published Abstracts and Conference Proceedings: 

 

1. Leany, B.D., Knatz, D.T., Mayfield, J., & Allen, D.N. (2006). Sensitivity of the 

test of memory and learning (TOMAL) to attention disorders. Applied 

Neuropsychology. 
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2. Park, B.S., Leany,B.D., Mayfield, J. & Allen, D.N. (2006). Structure of attention 

in children with traumatic brain injury. Applied Neuropsychology. 

 

3. Leany, B.D., Knatz, D.T., Allen, D.N., & Mayfield, J. (2005). Improvement of 

abstraction abilities following brain injury in children. Archives of Clinical 

Neuropsychology, 20 (7), 868-869. 

 

Presentations: 

 

1. Benuto, L.T., Leany, B.D., & Haboush, A. (2007, August). Gender Differences in 

Body Dissatisfaction and Compensatory Efforts. Poster presented at the 115th Annual 

convention of the American Psychological Association, San Francisco, CA. 

 

2. Leany, B.D., Mayfield, J., & Allen, D.N. (2006, October). Further support for the 

validity of the Test of Memory and learning (TOMAL) in children with traumatic 

brain injury and attention-deficity/hyperacticity disorder. Poster presented at the 26th 

Annual National Academy of Neuropsychology Conference, San Antonio, Texas. 

 

3. Park, B., Leany,B.D., & Allen, D.N. (2006, October). Psychometric Properties of a 

New Measure of Attention and Working Memory. Poster presented at the 26th Annual 

National Academy of Neuropsychology Conference, San Antonio, Texas. 

 

4. Silver, N., Leany, B.D., & Kambe, Gretchen. (2006, July). Signal word and text color 

influences on warning compliance. Talk presented at the 16th World Congress on 

Ergonomics, Maastricht, Netherlands. 

 

5. Strauss, G.P., Leany, B.D., Barney, S.J., Kamalani, L., & Allen, D.N. (2006, April). 

Positive emotions broaden cognitive functioning. Poster presented at the Western 

Psychological Association Conference, Palm Springs, CA. 

 

6. Leany, B.D., Knatz, D.T., Mayfield, J., & Allen, D.N. (2006, January). Sensitivity of 

the test of memory and learning (TOMAL) to attention disorders. Poster presented at 

the Coalition of Clinical Practitioners in Neuropsychology conference, 3rd Annual 

Meeting, Las Vegas, NV. 

 

7. Park, B.S., Leany,B.D., Mayfield, J. & Allen, D.N. (2006, January). Structure of 

attention in children with traumatic brain injury. Poster presented at the Coalition of 

Clinical Practitioners in Neuropsychology conference, 3rd Annual Meeting, Las 

Vegas, NV. 

 

8. Leany,B.D., Knatz, D.T., Mayfield, J., & Allen, D.N. (2005, October). Improvement 

in abstraction abilities following brain injury in children. Poster presented at the 25th 

annual National Academy of Neuropsychology Conference, Tampa, FL. 

 

9. Thomas, J.D., Leany, B.D., & Riley, E.P. (2001, April). Differential vulnerability to 

motor deficits in second replicate HAS and LAS following neonatal alcohol exposure. 

Poster presented at the Rocky Mountain Psychological Association Annual 

Conference, Reno, NV. 

6 AA 1278



 

 

 

Specific Teaching Experience: 

 

Lower Division Courses: 

Introductory Psychology1,6 

Statistics1 

Introduction to Sociology2 

Introduction to Political Science2 

Introduction to Health and Wellness2 

Research Methods1 

Upper Division Courses: 

Cognitive Psychology1 

Psychology of Leadership and 

Management3 

Abnormal Psychology6 

Introduction to Clinical Skills6 

Graduate Courses: 

Dissertation Chair5 

Research Methods4 

Research and Evaluation4 

Individual Assessment6 

Forensic Psychological Assessment4 

Evaluation and Treatment of the 

Offender4 

Substance Abuse Counseling 

Operational Psychology4 

Correctional Psychology4 

Psychology and the Legal System4 

 
1University of Nevada at Las Vegas; 2 University of Phoenix-Axia College; 3 Devry University; 4Argosy 
University; 5 Northcentral University; 6 University of Nevada Reno 

 

Other Experiences: 

 
Law Enforcement Academy Graduate 1994-Fayeteville Technical Community 

College. Fayeteville, N.C. 

 

1992-1994 Forward Observer-13F/Intelligence Analyst-96B: 18th Airborne Corps, 

U.S. Army, Fort Bragg, N.C. 

 

References: 

 
Elizabeth Neighbors 

Director of Statewide Forensic Services 

Lakes Crossing Center 

500 Galletti Way 

Sparks, NV 89431 

Phone: (775) 688-1900 

 

William T. O’Donohue  

Director, Victims of Crime Treatment 

Center 

Professor, Department of Psychology 

University of Nevada, Reno 

Reno, NV 89557 

Phone: (775) 826-3311 ext 102 

 

6 AA 1279



EXHIBIT “2” 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “2” 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “2” 

F I L E D
Electronically
PR16-00128

2018-09-28 04:45:01 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6903809 : pmsewell

6 AA 1280
Docket 77981   Document 2020-14638



 
~Dustin Edward Grate~ 

1325 Airmotive Way, Suite 209 

Reno, Nevada 89502 

Dustin@gratedetections.com 

www.gratedetections.com 

(775) 691-6527 

Professional – Revised and shortened for Evaluation/Competency case only (►) 

 

Nevada Native, working for the past 22 years in both a law-enforcement capacity as a 

Patrol Deputy, Private Investigator and School Resource Officer in the greater Reno, 

Sparks, and Carson City area. I have been P.O.S.T. certified with advance P.O.S.T. and 

Advance Reserve Certificates.  I have taken phase (1) of the Man Tracking course, with 

Classes in Criminal Justice and Psychology studies. I am certified by DATIA for Alcohol 

and Drug Testing. Owner of (2) Investigative Companies and License in Nevada PILB 

1782 and California PI 188095.   

 

I am an accomplished Investigative Professional with experience in investigations, 

surveillance, background checking, capital cases, murder investigations, mitigation expert 

experience, criminal defense, criminal prosecution, security/executive protection, and 

process service on numerous, simultaneous cases. My background in collaborating with 

law enforcement and knowledge of the legal system has made me an outstanding 

investigator in my career.  I have numerous “major crimes” cases investigated with 

successful outcomes for both the defense and the prosecution. 

 

I am the owner of “Grate” Detections, LLC and it was established in 2005, a Nevada 

based Mobile Drug Testing Company after starting my investigative carrier in 2002.  I 

provide quality, fast, efficient and cost-effective mobile drug testing. Urine or Hair based 

drug testing with lab-based confirmations included.  Expanding into doing alcohol testing 

and family court drug testing along with private testing. 

 

I am the Investigator for Lander County District Attorney’s office.  Taking care of 

internal investigations, prosecution investigations and county wide investigations. Also, 

the School Resource Officer for Bishop Manogue Highschool and the Rifle Team Coach. 

 

Certified in almost every court’s jurisdiction in Nevada as an expert witness both for 

investigative purposes and drug testing.  Used for jury selections and monitoring jury 

during trials.  Mitigation interviews for capital cases and murder cases. Child interviews 

for sexual assault cases. Work comp investigations, slip and fall investigations, work 

place violence evaluations and executive protection.   
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Professional Experience ~ Continued 

 

2005 ~ Present 

“Grate” Detections LLC: (Owner) - P.I. License Number 1782 / C.A. P.I. License 

Number 188095 

• Dustin Grate was formally a partner and owner of Spencer Investigations LLC. 

With the rapid growth of “Grate” Detections LLC, doing Mobile Drug Testing, 

and the request to have Private Investigations all under the same company, Dustin 

formed and continued to grow “Grate” Detections LLC with Private 

Investigations and Drug Testing Certified by DATIA. 

• With an extensive background in Criminal Defense cases, Family Law, 

Surveillnace and all other aspects of investigations. Our firm will complete 

whatever you need. 

• Mitigation interviews for capital cases and murder cases. Child interviews for 

sexual assault cases. Work comp investigations, slip and fall investigations, work 

place violence evaluations and executive protection.  Just to name a few. 

 Certified in most Nevada Courts for Expert Witness under Private 

Investigation and Drug Testing 

 Cases worked regarding Elderly and Child abuse/neglect.  

 Home studies and evaluations for child and adult placements.  

 Child sexual assault and abuse case interviews. 

 Testifying in courts on behalf of Caregiver or family members. 

 Investigative cases into caregivers/family members regarding elderly 

persons. 

 Investigations into retirement homes, Caregiving facilities for wrong doings. 

 

2017 ~ Present 

School Resource Officer / Rifle Coach – Bishop Manogue High School 

• School Resource Officer for Bishop Manogue Catholic High School. In charge of 

the school safety, background checks and drug testing. School Officer for events 

and overall protection of campus.  

• Rifle Coach for Bishop Manogue Catholic High School. In charge of the rifle 

team and events for BMCHS. Coaching multiple students and instructing on 

shooting techniques. 

 Cases involving children for abuse or neglect. 

 Parent or grandparent interviews. 
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2008 ~ 2017 

Spencer Investigations: (Owner / Partner) - P.I. License Number 632. 

• Dustin Grate was one of three Owners / Partners for Spencer Investigations, Reno, 

Nevada. Working as a professional investigator in all fields of investigation.  I 

have focused on “major crimes” cases over the last 5 years involving myself in an 

abundance of major cases like murder, attempted murder, sexual assault, and 

domestic battery cases.  I have worked a majority of my cases for the defense 

testifying as an expert in my field, building exhibits, drawing AutoCad crime 

scene displays, timelines, attorney support items, psychological profiling, and 

much more.  I have also worked many cases for the prosecution and private 

parties.  Types of cases range from major crimes, sex crimes, surveillance, 

research, backgrounds, asset search, interviews, court, testifying, and much more.  

P.O.S.T. certified with advance P.O.S.T. and advance reserve certificates.  I have 

taken phase (1) of the Man Tracking course. 

  

 Certified in most Nevada Courts for Expert Witness under Private 

Investigation and Drug Testing 

 Cases worked regarding Elderly and Child abuse/neglect.  

 Home studies and evaluations for child and adult placements.  

 Child sexual assault and abuse case interviews 

Professional Experience ~ Continued  

 

2005 ~ 2008 

John Yaryan Investigations (JYI Investigations)  

• Supervising investigator and Operations Manager of JYI Investigations in Reno, 

Nevada.  I was responsible for all the employees and the operations of the 

company.  My duties include, but are not limited to, any type of investigations, 

process serving, performing research, conducting surveillance, along with billing 

and maintaining contact with all clients.  My duties also include researching 

courts, testifying in court, interviewing witnesses, skip tracing, computer security, 

surveillance, psychological profiling, background investigations, helping 

companies address work place violence, counter measures, tracking down 

potential witnesses, and finding important information crucial to case file 

information and closure.  

 Certified in most Nevada Courts for Expert Witness under Private 

Investigation and Drug Testing 

 Cases worked regarding Elderly and Child abuse/neglect.  

 Home studies and evaluations for child and adult placements.  

 Child sexual assault and abuse case interviews 
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Professional Experience ~ Continued  

 

2002 - 2003 

Washoe Tribe of Nevada and California 

• Juvenile Drug Enforcement Officer, Court Bailiff, and I worked as the Probation 

Officer for the Adult and Juvenile departments.  My duties included but were not 

limited to; drug testing adults and juveniles, case management for adult and 

juvenile probationers, and the Bailiff for the “Drug Court” and “Tribal Court”. 

This was a law-enforcement, P.O.S.T certified, armed position.  I was responsible 

for prisoner transportation, booking of inmates and arresting violators of the 

“Drug Court” or probation violations.  I trained staff and officers on drug testing 

and procedures of drug testing and evidence protection. 

 

 Elder abuse and neglect cases performed on a case by case basis. 

 Tribal Law Elderly law cases. 

 Child abuse and neglect cases to include home studies and evaluations.     

 

1998 ~ 2002 

Deputy Sheriff for Carson City Sheriff’s Office 

 

• Patrol Deputy and Reserve for the Carson City Sheriff’s Department.  Duties 

included doing patrol, follow-up and making arrests, testifying in court, writing 

reports, transferring inmates, booking evidence, as well as serving subpoenas, 

TRO’s, TPO’s, summons, and civil papers. I also was involved in investigations 

from start to conviction. 

 Elder abuse and neglect cases performed on a case by case basis. 

o Testifying on behalf of the caregiver or family members.  

 Child abuse and neglect cases to include home studies and evaluations.     

 

1997 - 1998 

Police Officer for Sparks Police Department 

 

• Patrol Officer and Reserve duties included being in charge of reserve teams, 

included doing patrol, follow-up and making arrests, testifying in court, 

transferring inmates, booking evidence, report writing, along with serving 

subpoenas, TRO’s, TPO’s, summons, and civil papers.  I also participated in 

investigations from start to conviction. 

 Elder abuse and neglect cases performed on a case by case basis. 

o Testifying on behalf of the caregiver or family members.  

 Child abuse and neglect cases to include home studies and evaluations.     
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CODE:  3373 
G. DAVID ROBERTSON, ESQ. (NV Bar 1001) 
RICHARD D. WILLIAMSON, ESQ. (NV Bar 9932) 
JONATHAN J. TEW, ESQ. (NV Bar 11874) 
Robertson, Johnson, Miller & Williamson 
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 600 
Reno, Nevada 89501 
Telephone No.: (775) 329-5600 
Facsimile No.: (775) 348-8300 
Attorneys for Petitioner, Premier Trust, Inc. 

 

 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA 

 
 
In the Matter of the 
 
JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST 
 

Case No. PR16-00128 
 
Dept. No. 15 [PR] 

 
 
 

PREMIER’S RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Petitioner, Premier Trust, Inc., by and through its counsel of record, Robertson, Johnson, 

Miller & Williamson, hereby submits its recommendations to the Court regarding how to 

effectuate its supervisory role to manage Trust issues (“Recommendations”) pursuant to 

paragraph 10 of this Court’s August 16, 2018 Order Vacating and Resetting Hearing (“Order”). 

In particular, the Order requires that Premier “present its recommendations specifically 

and broadly” in light of: 1) its experience as the trustee; 2) this Court’s jurisdiction; and 3) the 

management, oversight and distribution provisions of the Trust documents.  Premier therefore 

presents its below recommendations seriatim as referenced by the Court. 

A. Premier’s Experience as Trustee 

Premier’s experience as trustee is best described as both frustrating and disheartening.  

At the upcoming hearing, Premier will present testimony from its current and former 

officers assigned to this Trust, Ryan Gonda and Nicole Shrive.  This testimony will give the 

Court significant insight into the challenges Premier has overcome on these Trusts, and those 

facing both a new successor trustee and this Court in managing the Frasier Trusts going forward.   

F I L E D
Electronically
PR16-00128

2018-09-28 04:48:23 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6903826 : pmsewell
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Premier expects the Court will leave that hearing with a clear understanding of the 

primary challenge facing these Trusts, i.e., that every party claims to be the only one with 

Dinny’s best interests in mind, while simultaneously claiming that all other parties are causing 

harm to Dinny.  Premier wishes it could simply advise the Court as to who is right in this 

dispute, thus giving clear guidance regarding how to manage all Trust issues in the future.  

Unfortunately, however, Premier is caught in the same trap, i.e., Premier strongly believes it has 

worked hard to protect Dinny’s best interests under difficult circumstances, but that Dinny is 

being harmed by others.  So, all Premier can do is point out facts which might assist the Court. 

Based upon Premier’s experience, Dinny is truly a victim.  It is well known that her son, 

Bradley Frasier, has harassed and intimidated her for years.  The Court has previously seen 

transcriptions of Brad’s threating and shameful voicemails to Dinny, but those are only the tip of 

the iceberg.  Brad left many other such voicemails for Dinny.  And, on the rare occasion when 

Dinny would actually speak to Brad – usually because she picked up the telephone thinking the 

call was from someone else - he would scream at her about the medical building and threaten 

litigation against her and the entire family.  Similarly, he has repeatedly threatened Premier and 

its counsel through a toxic stew of caustic emails, voicemails and telephone calls. 

Unfortunately, that pattern still continues to this day.  As the Court may recall, Dinny’s 

daughter Amy Frasier-Wilson filed a document in pro per on August 24, 2018 thanking the Court 

for setting a hearing in hopes of “bringing finality to this matter.”  See Amy Frasier-Wilson’s 

Objections to Accounting and Statement of Concerns filed August 24, 2018 (“Amy’s 

Statement”) at 2.  In that document, Amy expressed heartfelt concerns for Dinny and her care, 

and requested the Court deny payment to Janie Mulrain based upon Amy’s view that Ms. 

Mulrain has not been acting in Dinny’s best interests.  Id. at 5-12.  Amy’s Statement further 

questions whether Dinny comprehends what roles Mr. Resnick and Janie Mulrain are playing in 

Dinny’s life.  Id. at 8.  That very evening and the next day, Brad sent a succession of three (3) 

emails to Amy threatening her – apparently due to things written in her Statement.  Those emails 

are attached hereto as Exhibits 1 – 3.  Premier respectfully requests the Court turn now to those 

emails, and only continue reading here after letting those emails sink in for a few minutes. 
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Those three (3) emails from just a few weeks ago capture the entire essence of what 

Dinny, Premier and its counsel have all been forced to endure for the past several years. 

 The seeds of this discord were sown long before Premier or its counsel ever became 

involved.  Brad has pugnaciously asserted that the Trust’s money invested in his medical 

building was a “loan” rather than an ownership interest.  Unfortunately for Brad, the documents 

do not support his claim.  Title to the medical building is held in the joint names of Brad and the 

Trust, and, following Joe’s death, the accountants reported to the IRS on Form 706 that the Trust 

is one-half owner of the building.  Other documents also make clear that both Dinny and her 

husband Joe believed they owned one-half of the medical building.  See Exhibit 4.   

Like Exhibits 1 – 3, Exhibit 4 is an important document.  It reflects a meeting between 

Joe and Dinny and their estate lawyer at the time, Henry Coopersmith.  This meeting occurred 

before Joe became gravely ill and approximately eight (8) months before his death.  The 

Memorandum lays out Joe and Dinny’s intent to revise their Trusts regarding who should inherit 

their one-half of the medical building.  It also indicates they had decided not to leave Brad any of 

their estate but, rather, to divide the estate equally between Nori and Amy.  Unfortunately, the 

Trust was never so amended because, according to Dinny, Joe died before they could decide 

whether to leave their one-half of the medical building to Brad or to his children.  

While Premier recognizes that others may argue Exhibit 4 is hearsay, it is not in this 

context.  Premier does not offer this document for the truth of the matters asserted therein but, 

rather, to show Premier’s state of mind in believing that the Trust’s interest in the medical 

building was one of ownership rather than a loan.  NRS 51.035.  Once Premier reviewed all of 

the documents and spoke with the Trust’s accountant and legal counsel, it became clear that 

Premier could not treat the Trust’s one-half ownership in the medical building as a loan.  This 

infuriated Brad, and started him on a rampage which, as the Court can see, continues to this day. 

The problems facing Dinny, however, do not end with Brad Frasier.  It seems that all 

parties agree Dinny’s current mental state leaves her subject to influence and manipulation.  

Premier is very concerned that this is devastating Dinny’s golden years.  Brad and Nori have 

accused Amy of manipulating Dinny to revise the Trust to leave more to Amy.  Amy has accused 
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Brad of trying to manipulate Dinny to obtain the Trust’s one-half of the medical building (this 

was resolved by the Settlement Agreement, i.e., Brad will receive the Trust’s one-half of that 

building once the settlement is fully consummated).  Nori has accused Amy of manipulating 

Dinny to isolate her from Nori, and Amy has accused Nori of stealing from Dinny.  Amy has 

also accused Barry Resnick and Janie Mulrain of deliberately alienating Dinny against Premier, 

and trying to influence Dinny to fire Premier so that they can hire a trust company of their 

choosing.  Caught in the middle of all this mess is poor Dinny, who appears to be forgotten. 

As the Court is aware, Premier was completely cut off from any communication with 

Dinny once Mr. Resnick and Ms. Mulrain were hired.  Indeed, the most recent filing from Janie 

Mulrain criticizes Premier for trying to obtain reports about Dinny from the caregivers – despite 

Premier doing so as part of its fiduciary duty to ensure that Dinny is receiving services for which 

she is being billed and in response to complaints from both Amy and Nori that the caregivers are 

mistreating Dinny.  See Mulrain Petition at 10 ¶ 24.  So, Premier unfortunately does not have a 

good sense of Dinny’s current mental state or living conditions.  Accordingly, Premier applauds 

the Court for its plan to send a Reno investigator to meet with Dinny.  A truly independent 

analysis of Dinny’s mental state and her living conditions is clearly long overdue. 

Finally, while Premier is anxious to be relieved of any obligations regarding this Trust 

(for obvious reasons), it makes sense to Premier that the Court conclude its investigation into 

Dinny’s current situation before ruling on the various pending petitions.  That investigation may 

shed substantial light on whether Dinny needs to have an independent guardian appointed, and, 

should that occur, then the independent guardian may choose to revoke the POA given to Janie 

Mulrain and also hire different legal counsel to represent Dinny personally.  The independent 

guardian may also recommend a different trust company as the successor trustee.  So, while 

Premier is reluctant to further delay its withdrawal, it is more concerned about Dinny’s well-

being.  Accordingly, Premier’s primary Recommendations to the Court are as follows:  1) first 

obtain the independent investigation report; 2) use that report to determine if an independent 

guardian should be appointed and to assist in ruling on the various petitions; and 3) make 

decisions regarding how the Court and successor trustee will further administer the Trust. 
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B. This Court’s Jurisdiction 

This Court has already determined it has jurisdiction over the Trusts at issue in this case.  

On March 2, 2016, Premier filed a Petition for Confirmation of Trustees, for Construction of the 

Trust Instruments, and for Instructions, wherein it requested this Court assume jurisdiction over 

the Trusts. Premier Trust served all beneficiaries and put all interested parties on notice of that 

Petition for Confirmation. On April 21, 2016, the Probate Commissioner recommended that this 

Court assume jurisdiction over the Trusts. On August 29, 2016, this Court entered a Confirming 

Order and assumed jurisdiction over the Trusts and this matter pursuant to NRS §§ 164.030(1) 

and 164.033(1)(a). No one has questioned this Court’s continuing jurisdictions over the Trusts 

and their assets, and the Court has obviously made numerous rulings with respect to 

administration of the Trusts and their assets without any jurisdictional or peremptory challenges. 

C. Various Provisions of the Trust Documents 

This seemingly-innocuous question by the Court requires Premier to explain an entirely 

new and different layer of problems facing both the successor trustee and the Court in future 

administration of the Trusts.  Unfortunately, the vexing quandary is that the parties no longer 

agree on which Trust documents are operative.    

Specifically, the Survivor’s Trust has been amended at least twice since Joe’s death.  The 

first such amendment was drafted by Dinny’s prior attorney and apparently signed in either 2015 

or 2016.  That first amendment to the Survivor’s Trust purports to remove Brad as a beneficiary 

and also allegedly affects the distributions to Amy and Nori.  Premier has never recognized the 

validity of this first amendment, and Premier’s undersigned counsel has never reviewed that 

amended trust document.   Additionally, after Mr. Resnick began representing Dinny, he 

apparently drafted a second amendment to the Survivor’s Trust which purports to eliminate any 

distributions to Dinny’s children and allegedly leaves the estate to charities which are in part 

determined by Dinny’s former neighbor, Mr. Schwartz (a solo practitioner who uses Mr. 

Resnick’s office to conduct his legal practice).  Premier has also never recognized the validity of 

this second amendment, but, rather, has always operated on the Trust documents in place at the 

time of Joe’s death to avoid any question about Dinny’s competency to make the amendments.   

6 AA 1289



 

 
PREMIER’S RECOMMENDATIONS 

PAGE 6 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 Unfortunately, Premier fully expects that at some point in the near future there will be a 

battle over whether one or both of these amended trust documents is valid and thus operative.  

Premier understands that Amy has amassed substantial evidence corroborating the validity of the 

first amendment, while Brad has argued that such amendment was invalid due to Dinny being 

incompetent.  Similarly, Amy does not recognize the validity of the second amendment for the 

same reason.  It may very well be that the Court will have to ultimately address those 

amendments before it can determine exactly which Trust documents are extant and controlling.  

Once that is known, then the Court can better determine which management, oversight and 

distribution provisions of the Trust documents will impact future administration of those Trusts. 

D. Conclusion 

Premier’s primary Recommendations to the Court are as follows:  1) first obtain the 

independent investigation report; 2) use that report to determine if an independent guardian 

should be appointed and to assist in ruling on the various petitions; and 3) thereafter, make 

decisions regarding how the Court and successor trustee will further administer the Trust. 

Premier apologizes to the Court that it cannot provide any clearer recommendations.  

Given that Premier has been completely cut off from any contact with Dinny for over a year – 

and now even from any contact with her caregivers – Premier simply lacks sufficient information 

to make more detailed recommendations.  Premier strongly believes, however, that this Court 

taking a firm and active role in this case is Dinny’s best hope to avoid further victimization.  

Affirmation 

Pursuant to NRS § 239B.030, the undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding 

document does not contain the social security number of any person. 

Dated this 28th day of September, 2018. 

ROBERTSON, JOHNSON,  
MILLER & WILLIAMSON  
 
 
By:  /s/ G. David Robertson    
 G. David Robertson, Esq. 
 Richard D. Williamson, Esq. 
 Jonathan J. Tew, Esq. 
 Attorneys for Premier Trust, Inc. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of Robertson, Johnson, 

Miller & Williamson, 50 West Liberty Street, Suite 600, Reno, Nevada 89501, and that on the 

28th day of September, 2018, I electronically filed the foregoing PREMIER’S 

RECOMMENDATIONS with the Clerk of the Court by using the electronic filing system 

which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following: 

Barnet Resnick, Esq. [pro hac vice] 
F. Wallace McClure, Esq. 
Patrick R. Millsap, Esq. 
c/o  Wallace & Millsap, LLC 
510 W. Plumb Lane, Suite A 
Reno, NV  89509 
Attorneys for Dinny Frasier 

Michael A. Rosenauer, Esq. 
510 West Plumb Lane, Suite A 
Reno, NV  89509 
Attorney for Janie L. Mulrain Attorney-in-Fact 
for Mrs. Dinny Frasier 

 
I further certify that on the 28th day of September, 2018, I caused to be served by U.S. 

Mail a true and correct copy of the foregoing document, addressed to the following: 

Nori Frasier 
4372 Pacifica Way, Unit 3 
Oceanside, CA  92056 

Amy Frasier Wilson 
10 Via Sonrisa 
Mission Viejo, CA   92692 
 

Bradley L. Frasier, M.D. 
3609 Vista Way 
Oceanside, CA 92056 

 

 

/s/ Teresa W. Stovak 

An Employee of Robertson, Johnson, Miller & Williamson 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

Ex. No. Description Pages 

1 August 24, 2018 email from Bradley Frasier to Amy Wilson 1 

2 August 25, 2018 email from Bradley Frasier to Amy Wilson 1 

3 August 25, 2018 email from Bradley Frasier to Amy Wilson and Nori 

Frasier 

 

4 February 28, 2014 Henry Coopersmith Memorandum  2 
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EXHIBIT “1” 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “1” 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “1” 

F I L E D
Electronically
PR16-00128

2018-09-28 04:48:23 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6903826 : pmsewell
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From: Bfrasier <bfrasiermd@gmail.com>
Date: Fri, Aug 24, 2018, 8:25 PM
Subject: Inability to contact Mom
To: <digitalmermaid8@gmail.com>

Karma works in mysterious ways you evil bitch! You and your evil husband did the same thing to me, by screening
Mom’s calls and not allowing her to call me back. You disparaged Nori and me in Mom’s mind, so you could inherit 2/3
of our parent’s estate. How pathetic and despicable.

The worst is yet to come to you.

Sent from my iPhone

REDACTED

REDACTED
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EXHIBIT “2” 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “2” 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “2” 

F I L E D
Electronically
PR16-00128

2018-09-28 04:48:23 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6903826 : pmsewell
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From: Bfrasier <bfrasiermd@gmail.com>
Date: Sat, Aug 25, 2018, 8:56 PM
Subject: Greed
To: <digitalmermaid8@gmail.com>

Dad gave us each a document that stated everything should be divided 3 ways and that “greed would not be
tolerated.” He would “be watching.”

You were a disappointment to him during his life and you’re even more of a disappointment to his memory after his
death.

Sent from my iPhone

REDACTED

REDACTED

6 AA 1296



EXHIBIT “3” 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “3” 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “3” 

F I L E D
Electronically
PR16-00128

2018-09-28 04:48:23 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6903826 : pmsewell
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From: Bfrasier <bfrasiermd@gmail.com>
Date: Sat, Aug 25, 2018, 9:45 PM
Subject: Dad’s headstone
To: <digitalmermaid8@gmail.com>
Cc: <nori_frasier@hotmail.com>

You had ample time to arrange for Dad’s headstone when you isolated Mom from the rest of the family in 2015-16. You
controlled everything and conspired with Travis and Bill to hijack our parents’ estate. Dad’s headstone has been paid for.
All you had to do was pick it out with Mom. We weren’t involved because you isolated us from Mom and disparaged us
in her mind, so you could inherit 2/3 of our parents’ estate.

Your crocodile tears in court about Dad’s headstone was just poor acting because everyone saw through your lie. Dad
doesn’t have a headstone because of you. I’ll call the mortuary and order it myself, you wicked witch.

Sent from my iPhone

REDACTED

REDACTED
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F I L E D
Electronically
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2018-09-28 04:48:23 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
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Transaction # 6903826 : pmsewell
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2018-09-28 05:03:21 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6903843 : pmsewell
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CODE: 3373 
G. DAVID ROBERTSON, ESQ. (NV Bar 1001) 
RICHARD D. WILLIAMSON, ESQ. (NV Bar 9932) 
JONATHAN J. TEW, ESQ. (NV Bar 11874) 
Robertson, Johnson, Miller & Williamson 
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 600 
Reno, Nevada 89501 
Telephone No.: (775) 329-5600 
Facsimile No.: (775) 348-8300 
Attorneys for Petitioner, Premier Trust, Inc. 

 

 

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA 

 
 
In the Matter of the 
 
JORDAN DANA FRASIER FAMILY TRUST 
 

Case No. PR16-00128 
 
Dept. No. 15 [PR] 

 
 
 

RESPONSE TO JANIE MULRAIN’S PETITION FOR PROFESSIONAL’S FEES AND 
ADVANCED COSTS, RESPONSE TO PREMIER’S CONCERNS 

(December 20181 through August 2018) 
 

 Petitioner, Premier Trust, Inc. (“Premier”), by and through its counsel of record, 

Robertson, Johnson, Miller & Williamson, hereby submits this Response to Janie Mulrain’s 

(“Ms. Mulrain”) “Petition for Professional’s Fees and Advanced Costs, Response to Premier’s 

Concerns (December 2018 through August 2018)” filed on September 17, 2018 (“Petition”).  

I. INTRODUCTION 

Ms. Mulrain’s overarching objection appears to be that she thinks Premier’s only 

obligation as a trustee is to make unfettered payments from the Trusts without conducting any 

investigation, regardless of the amount or reason for the request. Contrary to Ms. Mulrain’s 

erroneous belief, the Trusts are not her personal checkbook. Rather, Premier is Dinny Frasier’s 

                                                           

1 It appears that Ms. Mulrain is confused as to many items in her Petition. As seen in the title of her document, the 
Court did not order her to file a “Petition for Professional’s Fees and Advanced Costs.” Moreover, Ms. Mulrain 
appears to be in error as to the dates of her own invoices (December 2018 has not yet occurred).  Additionally, 
although purporting to be her Power of Attorney, Ms. Mulrain apparently does not know how to spell Dinny’s name 
(she refers to her as “Denni” or “Dinni” throughout the Petition), nor does she know that Dinny’s counsel’s name is 
Mr. Resnick (she continuously refers to him as “Mr. Mesnick.”).  In addition to these multiple errors, Ms. Mulrain’s 
Petition and Declaration also contain at least one word with no known recognizable meaning (i.e., “perogatory”). 
 

F I L E D
Electronically
PR16-00128

2018-09-28 05:34:29 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6903874 : pmsewell
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trust company, which means that it has a fiduciary duty to ensure that the corpus of the Trusts is 

maintained and not subjected to unnecessary waste. Premier obviously has a fiduciary duty to 

both Dinny and the contingent remaindermen of the Trusts to prevent improper distributions.  

Additionally, it is ironic that Dinny’s counsel, Mr. Resnick, has raised extensive 

objections to Premier’s accounting and repeatedly demanded more information so he can analyze 

whether Premier’s expenditures are proper – all the while suggesting that Premier has not kept 

sufficiently-detailed records. Yet, Ms. Mulrain is now accusing Premier of overstepping its 

bounds as a trust company by requesting additional information regarding her services, and 

alleges that Premier has no obligation to determine whether certain expenditures are proper. Mr. 

Resnick’s and Ms. Mulrain’s filing are thus in sharp contrast, and they cannot have it both ways.   

A. Payment to Ms. Mulrain 

In Ms. Mulrain’s Petition to the Court for fees she states “there is no cognizable reason 

why Premier has refused to pay for her services.” Petition at 1 ¶ 21.  Premier explained very 

coherently in its Response to Janie Mulrain’s Objection to Accounting filed on August 15, 2018 

(“August Response”) that it had not paid her for quite specific reasons; however, these issues 

could be resolved if: 1) Ms. Mulrain provid[ed] an accounting for Dinny’s personal funds that 

she has handled to ensure all such funds were properly utilized (so Premier can ensure both that 

Ms. Mulrain has provided the services she claims and also that Ms. Mulrain is not being paid 

twice for her services); 2) providing detailed invoices of her work; and 3) Ms. Mulrain providing 

an explanation for some of the allegedly-improper conduct claimed by Dinny’s children.” 

August Response at 2 ¶ 1-5. 

At the time of filing the August Response, the only statement Premier had ever received 

regarding Ms. Mulrain’s fee payment request was a one-page document with four entries which 

requested payment totaling approximately $80,000.  See Ex. B to August Response.  This 

document was not provided to Premier until fifteen (15) months after Ms. Mulrain was appointed 

Dinny’s Power of Attorney.  Because of the limited amount of information contained in the 

document, Premier was unable to determine whether payment to Ms. Mulrain was appropriate. 

Thus, Premier required a more detailed response as to the work she performed for Dinny.   

6 AA 1405
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Ms. Mulrain has now finally provided detailed invoices of her work, which are attached 

to her Petition. However, Ms. Mulrain has still not provided Premier a detailed accounting of 

Dinny’s personal funds so that Premier may ensure that Ms. Mulrain performed the services she 

claims and that Ms. Mulrain is not being paid twice for any services.  Premier requires a detailed 

statement of Dinny’s personal finances to cross-reference whether Ms. Mulrain has appropriately 

handled Dinny’s funds or already been paid in any respects out of Dinny’s personal account.    

Once that cross-referencing is completed, then Premier will be in a position to determine the 

proper amount to pay to Ms. Mulrain.  

Ms. Mulrain asserts that she has already submitted such detailed financial records to this 

Court in camera relating to Dinny’s personal finances. Even assuming that is correct, those 

documents have not been updated through this year and should at least be updated through the 

last day for which Ms. Mulrain requests compensation. If the Court believes there is some good 

reason why Premier should not be allowed to review these documents showing Dinny’s income 

and expenditures since Ms. Mulrain took over Dinny’s personal finances, then Premier requests 

that Ms. Mulrain submit Dinny’s updated personal accountings to the Court in camera so that the 

Court may cross-check Ms. Murlain’s payment requests. Premier has no issues with the Court 

reviewing these accountings in camera. Regardless, however, Premier believes it is important 

that someone review the accountings to ensure that Ms. Mulrain has not been paid twice for her 

services and further ensure that Dinny’s personal funds have been properly utilized. Once this 

has occurred, then Premier has no qualms paying Ms. Mulrain from the Trusts. 

In addition to the above concerns, Premier is also disturbed by the allegation of Amy 

Frasier-Wilson that Dinny does not even know who Janie Mulrain is or that Ms. Mulrain has 

Dinny’s Power of Attorney. See Amy Wilson’s Objections to Accounting and Statement of 

Concerns, filed Aug. 24, 2018, at p. 5. Equally as concerning is the allegation that Dinny 

believes Amy has her Power of Attorney. Id.  Amy’s statement, if true, indicates that Ms. 

Mulrain may not be acting in Dinny’s best interests despite her claims to the contrary. 

Accordingly, as stated in the concurrently-filed Recommendations, Premier is fully 

supportive of this Court selecting an independent investigator to evaluate Dinny’s circumstances. 
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Premier believes that evaluation will be helpful in many respects, including shedding light on the 

propriety of Ms. Mulrain’s new request for nearly $200,000 in fiduciary fees.  If the investigator 

concludes that Ms. Mulrain has acted in Dinny’s best interests and that her services were 

appropriate and necessary, then Ms. Mulrain’s fees should be paid. If after interviewing Dinny 

the investigator determines that Ms. Mulrain has not acted in Dinny’s best interests, or that not 

all of the requested fiduciary fees were reasonable and necessary, then perhaps some or all of 

Ms. Mulrain’s fees should not be paid. Once again, it is difficult to address these issues without 

knowing the outcome of the investigator’s report regarding Dinny’s current circumstances. 

With regard to the $100,000 withdrawal cited by Ms. Mulrain in her Petition, Ms. 

Mulrain states that Nicole Shrive of Premier was aware of the withdrawal from the Bank of 

America account and payment into the Opus Bank account.  As this Court knows, Ms. Shrive left 

her position with Premier in summer of 2017.  At the time Attorney Robertson made his 

statement to the Court regarding his lack of knowledge about the $100,000 withdrawal, neither 

he nor the new trust officer, Ryan Gonda had knowledge of this transaction because this 

information was not relayed to Mr. Robertson or Mr. Gonda. Premier and Mr. Robertson 

apologize for not being aware of the email exchange between Ms. Mulrain and Ms. Shrive on 

this issue.  Still, Premier understands that this $100,000 was spent by Ms. Mulrain because she 

later requested and received an additional $50,000 from the Trusts claiming that Dinny had run 

out of personal funds.  Premier has no records showing how this $150,000 was spent.  

Ultimately, Premier is willing to pay Ms. Mulrain her requested fees and costs once 

satisfied that these services were properly rendered and that no portion of these fees and costs 

have been previously paid by Dinny.  Premier believes this can best be accomplished after the 

investigation has been completed and either Premier or this Court has analyzed Dinny’s personal 

account to ensure that Ms. Mulrain is not being compensated twice. Once Premier has this 

information, only then can it determine what payments should be remitted to Ms. Mulrain.  

B. Ms. Mulrain’s Comments Regarding Dinny’s Thoughts and Feelings  

Ms. Mulrain’s Declaration goes into great detail about what Dinny has allegedly told her 

to do.  The Declaration repeatedly purports to present information as to how Dinny feels and 
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what she thinks about this litigation. For example, Ms. Mulrain alleges that Dinny has 

“previously relayed to me that she wanted to conclude the litigation with her son as soon as 

possible and it seems that Premier and Robertson are ‘dragging it out.’” Petition at 9 ¶ 19-20. 

Ms. Mulrain next alleges that “Dinny has further states [sic] many times in the past as well as 

currently that ‘I trust Barry one-thousand percent’ and that ‘I want him to take care of my son’s 

lawsuit.’”  Id.  However, there is no way for Premier to verify these alleged statements of Dinny.  

Even though Ms. Mulrain cites to Exhibit Y as evidence for these statements, there is nothing in 

Exhibit Y that documents Dinny actually said what Ms. Mulrain claims. These statements are 

clearly second-hand accounts from Ms. Mulrain.  Furthermore, Ms. Mulrain alleges that “[t]hese 

actions taken by Premier and Robertson as well as other factors increased Dinny’s suspicion of 

them . . . This has been a sore spot for Dinny in that she feels that Premier is not acting in the 

Trust beneficiary’s best interests.” Id. at ¶ 25-28.  Again, although Ms. Mulrain purports to tell 

the Court Dinny’s thoughts and feelings about Premier, these statements are wholly 

uncorroborated by Dinny herself.  The Court should thus ignore these unsubstantiated second-

hand accounts proffered by Ms. Mulrain.  

C. Importance of Sending an Independent Investigator to Talk with Dinny 

Premier obviously has significant concerns regarding Dinny’s awareness of Ms. 

Mulrain’s position and authority, whether Ms. Mulrain is requesting double payment, and 

whether Dinny actually harbors adverse feelings about Premier’s representation of her interests 

which are her own thoughts rather than those planted in her mind by Ms. Mulrain (as alleged by 

Amy).  In light of these concerns, Premier fully supports this Court’s decision to select an 

independent investigator to evaluate Dinny.  Premier is particularly interested in the 

investigator’s opinions regarding whether Dinny fully understands and comprehends the actions 

Ms. Mulrain and Mr. Resnick are purportedly taking at her behest.  Premier expects the 

investigator’s report will also be helpful in evaluating Ms. Mulrain’s request for nearly $200,000 

in compensation for fiduciary fees.  Accordingly, Premier respectfully requests that the Court 

order the investigation to proceed and consider the results of the investigative report before 

making a final decision on whether to award the fees requested by Ms. Mulrain’s Petition. 
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II. CONCLUSION 

Premier believes that it is in Dinny’s and the Trusts’ best interests to send an investigator to 

fully evaluate Dinny’s circumstances.  Once Premier can fully ascertain Dinny’s situation then it 

can turn to the determination of whether to remit payment to Ms. Mulrain as she has requested.  

At this time, however, Premier is deeply concerned with and disturbed by the allegations that 

Dinny is not making decisions on her own accord.  In addition, Premier has an obligation to 

make certain no payments have been made to Ms. Mulrain or her company from Dinny’s 

personal funds to prevent any double payment.  Premier has a fiduciary obligation to ensure that 

no wasteful disbursements are made out of the Trusts for inappropriate reasons.  Premier thus 

seeks the Court’s direction and will obviously pay whatever portion or all of Ms. Mulrain’s 

requested fees and costs when and if the Court deems such payment appropriate. 

Affirmation 

Pursuant to NRS § 239B.030, the undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding 

document does not contain the social security number of any person. 

Dated this 28th day of September, 2018. 

ROBERTSON, JOHNSON,  
MILLER & WILLIAMSON  
 
 
By:  /s/ G. David Robertson   
 G. David Robertson, Esq. 
 Richard D. Williamson, Esq. 
 Jonathan J. Tew, Esq. 
 Attorneys for Dinny G. Frasier and 
 Premier, Inc. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of Robertson, Johnson, 

Miller & Williamson, 50 West Liberty Street, Suite 600, Reno, Nevada 89501, and that on the 

28th day of September, 2018, I electronically filed the foregoing RESPONSE TO JANIE 

MULRAIN’S PETITION FOR PROFESSIONAL’S FEES AND ADVANCED COSTS, 

RESPONSE TO PREMIER’S CONCERNS with the Clerk of the Court by using the 

electronic filing system which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following: 

Barnet Resnick, Esq. [pro hac vice] 
F. Wallace McClure, Esq. 
Patrick R. Millsap, Esq. 
c/o  Wallace & Millsap, LLC 
510 W. Plumb Lane, Suite A 
Reno, NV  89509 
Attorneys for Dinny Frasier 

Michael A. Rosenauer, Esq. 
510 West Plumb Lane, Suite A 
Reno, NV  89509 
Attorney for Janie L. Mulrain Attorney-in-Fact 
for Mrs. Dinny Frasier 

 
I further certify that on the 28th day of September, 2018, I caused to be served by U.S. 

Mail a true and correct copy of the foregoing RESPONSE TO JANIE MULRAIN’S 

PETITION FOR PROFESSIONAL’S FEES AND ADVANCED COSTS, RESPONSE TO 

PREMIER’S CONCERNS addressed to the following: 

Nori Frasier 
4372 Pacifica Way, Unit 3 
Oceanside, CA  92056 

Amy Frasier Wilson 
10 Via Sonrisa 
Mission Viejo, CA   92692 
 

Bradley L. Frasier, M.D. 
3609 Vista Way 
Oceanside, CA 92056 

 

 

/s/ Teresa W. Stovak 

An Employee of Robertson, Johnson, Miller & Williamson 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Doyle Law Office, PLLC and that 

on the 11th day of April, 2020, a true and correct copy of the above APPELLANT’S 

APPENDIX was e-filed and e-served on all registered parties to the Nevada Supreme 

Court’s electronic filing system as listed below: 

Patrick Millsap 
Wallace & Millsap LLC 
510 W. Plumb Lane, Ste. A 
Reno, NV 89509 
 
G. David Robertson, Esq. 
Robertson, Johnson, Miller, & Williamson 
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 600 
Reno, NV 89501 
 
Michael A. Rosenauer 
Michael A. Rosenauer, Ltd. 
510 West Plumb Lane, Suite A 
Reno NV 89509 

 
And by depositing for mailing in the U.S. mail, with sufficient postage affixed thereto; 

to all participants not registered for electronic filing:  
 
Nori Frasier 
4372 Pacifica Way, Unit 3 
Oceanside, CA 92056 
 
Bradley L. Frasier, M.D. 
3609 Vista Way 
Oceanside, CA 92056 

 
DATED this 11th day of April, 2020. 

 

             /s Kerry S. Doyle    
         Kerry S. Doyle 

 




